
1 
 

CITY OF DELAWARE 
CITY COUNCIL 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
1 SOUTH SANDUSKY STREET 
7:00 P.M. REGULAR MEETING 

 
AGENDA 

 
 
6:30 P.M. EXECUTIVE SESSION: pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Section 
121.22 (G) (3) pending or imminent court action, Section 121.22 (G) (1) 
personnel, Section 121.22 (G) (5) matters required to be kept confidential by 
State statute, Section 121.22 (G) (2) acquisition of property for public purpose 
and 121.22(G) (8) consideration of confidential information related to a request 
for economic development assistance. 
 
7:00 P.M. REGULAR MEETING December 10, 2018 
 
1. ROLL CALL 
 
2. INVOCATION – Father Michael Watson, St. Mary Catholic Church 

 
3.     PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
4. APPROVAL of the Motion Summary of the Regular Meeting of Council 

held on November 26, 2018, as recorded and transcribed. 
APPROVAL of the Motion Summary of the Budget Work Session Meeting 
held on December 3, 2018, as recorded and transcribed.  
 

5. CONSENT AGENDA 
A. Acceptance of the Motion Summary of the Historic Preservation 

Commission meeting held on September 26, 2018, as recorded and 
transcribed.  

B. Acceptance of the Motion Summary of the Shade Tree Commission 
meeting held on October 23, 2018, as recorded and transcribed.  

C. Acceptance of the Motion Summary of the Planning Commission 
meeting held on November 7, 2018, as recorded and transcribed.  

D. Establish January 14, 2019 at 7:20 p.m. as a date and time for a 
public hearing and third reading of Ordinance No. 18-119, an 
ordinance for Fahey Bank Company approving a Conditional Use 
Permit for Fahey Bank on approximately 0.81 acres on property 
zoned B-3 (Community Business District) and located at 75 West 
William Street. 

E. Establish January 14, 2019 at 7:30 p.m. as a date and time for a 



2 
 

public hearing and third reading of Ordinance No. 18-120, an 
ordinance for Nutter Company LLC., approving a Conditional Use 
Permit for Blue Sky Car Wash on approximately 1.28 acres on 
property zoned A-1 PMU (Agricultural District with a Planned 
Mixed Use Overlay District) and located on Lot 2 of the Coughlin’s 
Crossing Development.  
 

6. LETTERS, PETITIONS, AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 
  
7. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
8. 7:15 P.M. PUBLIC HEARING AND SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 

18-114, an ordinance amending the Schedule of Fees and Service 
Charges. 

 
9. 7:30 P.M. PUBLIC HEARING AND SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 

18-109, an ordinance making appropriations for the Year 2019 and 
declaring an emergency.  

 
10. SECOND READING of Resolution No. 18-65, a resolution establishing 

guidelines for establishing New Community Authorities.  
 

11. FIFTH READING of Ordinance No. 18-90 (updated), an ordinance finding 
that the creation of the Terra Alta Community Authority will be 
conducive to the public health, safety, convenience and welfare and is 
intended to result in the development of a new community; declaring that 
authority to be organized and a body politic and corporate; defining the 
boundary of that authority’s new community district; providing the 
method of appointing members to that the Authority’s Board of Trustees 
and fixing the surety for those trustee’s bonds.  
 

12. THIRD READING of Ordinance No. 18-105, an ordinance approving a 
Preliminary Subdivision Plat request for Makapa LLC., for Belle 
Commons for four single family lots on approximately 1.344 acres on 
property zoned R-3 (One-Family Residential District) and located on the 
north side of Belle Avenue and on the east side of Liberty Road.  
 

13. THIRD READING of Ordinance No. 18-106, an ordinance approving a 
Final Subdivision Plat request by Makapa LLC., for Belle Commons for 
four single family lots on approximately 1.344 acres on property zoned R-
3 (One-Family Residential District) and located on the north side of Belle 
Avenue and on the east side of Liberty Road.  
 

14. SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 18-110, an ordinance amending 



3 
 

the Delaware Municipal Court and Clerk of Court Employee Benefits and 
Leave Policies, and declaring and emergency.  
 

15. SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 18-111, an ordinance amending 
Ordinance No. 17-78 establishing the pay and benefits for various part-
time and intermittent/seasonal employees of the City of Delaware, and 
declaring and emergency.  

 
16. SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 18-112, an ordinance amending 

the Management, Professional, Technical, Confidential, and Supervisory 
Employees Pay Plan, and declaring and emergency.  

 
17. SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 18-113, an ordinance establishing 

new salary rates for the Mayor and members of City Council effective 
January 1, 2020 and repealing Ordinance No. 13-44.  

 
18. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 18-115, an ordinance approving a 

Final Development Plan request by Pulte Homes for Heatherton Phase 8 
consisting of 42 single family lots on approximately 12.8 acres zoned R-3 
PRD (one-Family Residential with a Planned Residential District) and 
located on Boulder Drive, Elbridge Street, Gwinnett Street and Clymer 
Street.  
 

19. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 18-116, an ordinance approving a 
Final Subdivision Plat request by Pulte Homes for Heatherton Phase 8 
consisting of 42 single family lots on approximately 12.8 acres zoned R-3 
PRD (One-Family Residential with a Planned Residential District) and 
located on Boulder Drive, Elbridge Street, Gwinnett Street and Clymer 
Street.  
 

20. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 18-117, an ordinance for the 
Delaware County Fair Board approving a Combined Preliminary and 
Final Development Plan for the Delaware County 4H Building located 
within the Delaware County Fairgrounds along the north side of 
Pennsylvania Avenue on property zoned R-3 (One-Family Residential 
District).   
 

21. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 18-118, an ordinance for Fahey Bank 
Company approving a Combined Preliminary and Final Development 
Plan for Fahey Bank on approximately 0.81 acres on property zoned B-3 
(Community Business District) and located at 75 West William Street.  
 

22. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 18-119, an ordinance for Fahey Bank 
Company approving a Conditional Use Permit for Fahey Bank on 



4 
 

approximately 0.81 acres on property zoned B-3 (Community Business 
District) and located at 75 West William Street.  
 

23. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 18-120, an ordinance for Nutter 
Company LLC., approving a Conditional Use Permit for Blue Sky Car 
Wash on approximately 1.28 acres on property zoned A-1 PMU 
(Agricultural District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) and 
located on Lot 2 of the Coughlin’s Crossing Development.  
 

24. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 18-121, an ordinance for Nutter 
Company LLC., approving a Combined Preliminary and Final 
Development Plan for Blue Sky Car Wash on approximately 1.28 acres 
on property zoned A-1 PMU (Agricultural District with a Planned Mixed 
Use Overlay District) and located on Lot 2 of the Coughlin’s Crossing 
Development.   
 

25. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 18-122, an ordinance establishing 
the salary and benefits of the Council Clerk, and declaring and 
emergency.  
 

26. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

27. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 

28. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



















































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  8    DATE:  12/10/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-114   RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING:  YES  
       December 10, 2018 at 7:15 p.m. 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:   
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION: 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING PORTIONS OF THE SCHEDULE OF FEES AND 
SERVICE CHARGES. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
UPDATE 12/10/2018:  This draft reflects two additional changes to the fee 
schedule; a spelling correction to the Hilborn Room and $10 increases to Mingo 
3 Season/Veterans Park Spray and Play Shelters.  
 
11/26/2018 
Per 197.01 of the codified ordinances, the city’s fees and services charges are 
reviewed each year with the annual budget. The adjustments in this legislation 
address engineering inspection fees, small cell facility charges, and impact fees.  
Impact fee changes come as a result of a study commissioned by the city to 
review the impact fees. 
 
Regarding engineering inspection fees, the Building Industry Association (BIA) 
made a request of the City in 2017 to re-visit the fee structure entirely.  The 
BIA suggested the flat fee system for inspection services be converted to a 
“cost-plus” sytem where the Developer pays the actual cost to provide the 
services (typically consultants for the City) plus an administrative fee to cover 
some costs of in-house employees.  The BIA feels this would be a fair way to 
address the fact that some projects take far longer to complete than others.  



Over the past year, engineering staff performed the task of tracking all 
expenses (in-house and consultants) relating to the provision of inspection 
services per project.  Staff has analyzed the data and drawn the conclusion 
that a “cost-plus” system is a practical and fair way to charge for inspection 
services. 
 
The Small Cell Facility Fee reflects changes included in recent changes to Ohio 
Revised Code 4939 and a declaratory ruling by the FCC.  The Ohio Revised 
Code revision was the compromise legislation that resulted from a coalition of 
cities, including Delaware, suing the state.  The limits embodied in the fee 
schedule include an amount that is permitted both by federal and state law 
covering small cell facilities, which conflict in many ways. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
In order to adjust fees, the fee schedule must be amended. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
Separate, but related, the impact fees adjustments will be introduced as future 
legislation at a subsequent meeting.  
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
The engineering fee change would change the method the fee is charged. 
Moving from a calculation based on cost of the improvements to a cost of 
service model. 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Darren Shulman, City Attorney 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval at 3rd Reading   
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
N/A 



ORDINANCE NO. 18-114 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE SCHEDULE OF 
FEES AND SERVICE CHARGES. 

 
WHEREAS, as part of the yearly review of the fees established in Delaware 

Codified Ordinance Section 197.01, it has been determined that certain rates 
should be amended. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, Be It Ordained by the Council of the City of Delaware, 
State of Ohio: 
 

SECTION 1.  The following portions of 197.02 are amended as follows: 
 

197.02 FEE SCHEDULE 
As used in this chapter, “s.f” means square foot/feet. “x” means multiplied by.  

 
Community Development/Construction 

SOURCE OF 
FEE 

FEE TITLE AMOUNT 

903.03 Engineering 
Inspection FEES 

Flat Fee 

APPLICANT INVOICED MONTHLY 
FOR: 

• $60 PER HOUR FOR IN-
HOUSE INSPECTION 
SERVICES 

• ACTUAL COST OF 
CONTRACT INSPECTION 
SERVICES  

• 10% ADMINISTRATIVE FEE 
FOR ALL INSPECTION FEE 
BILLINGS  

FINAL RECONCILIATION 
PERFORMED UPON COMPLETION 
OF ALL WORK AND RECEIPT BY 
CITY OF ALL OUTSTANDING 
CONTRACT SERVICE BILLING. 
Single Family Residential: 7.5% × 
Value of Public Infrastructure 
Improvements  
Multi-Family Residential: 7.5% × 
Value of Public Infrastructure 
Improvements PLUS 3% × Value of 
Private Infrastructure Improvements  
Commercial/Industrial: 7.5% × 
Value of Public Infrastructure 
Improvements PLUS 1.5% × Value of 



Private Infrastructure Improvements  
Off Site Public Improvements: 7.5% × 
Value of Public Infrastructure 
Improvements  
 

 
 
 

LICENSES AND PERMITS  

SOURCE OF FEE  FEE TITLE  AMOUNT  

OHIO REVISED CODE 4939.0316, 
4939.0322 

NOTE: THE FEES ARE BASED ON 
THE LIMITS ESTABLISHED BY 

THE DECLARATORY RULING AND 
THIRD REPORT AND ORDER 

ADOPTED 9/26/18 BY THE FCC 

SMALL 
CELL 

FACILITY  

ONE TIME APPLICATION 
FEE: $250 PER SITE OR 
$500 FOR UP TO FIVE 
SITES SUBMITTED IN 
SAME APPLICATION 
RECURRING ANNUAL 

FEE: $200 PER YEAR PER 
SMALL CELL. 

 
 

 
FACILITY RENTAL FEES  

SOURCE OF 
FEE  

FEE TITLE  AMOUNT  

 
Hillborn HILBORN and Bixby 

Rooms  

$20.00/hr  
Hillborn HILBORN Kitchen: 

additional $25.00/hr  
Set up/tear down: 

$40.00/room  

 
Mingo 3 Season/Veterans Park 

Spray & Play Shelters  

Weekday (Mon-Thurs)  
Single Block: $40.00  

All Day: $80.00  
   

Weekend (Fri-Sat-Sun)  
Single Block: $60.00 $70.00 
All Day: $120.00 $130.00  

INCLUDING HOLIDAYS 

 



SECTION 2. All other sections of the fee schedule remain unchanged. 
 

SECTION 3. This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 

 
 

ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 
CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  9    DATE: 12/10/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-109   RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       November 26, 2018 at 7:30 p.m. 
       December 10, 2018 at 7:30 p.m. 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  -- 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE MAKING APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE YEAR 2019, AND 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The first reading and first public hearing of the budget was held at the 
November 26 Council meeting. A Budget Work Session was held on December 
3.   
 
This is the second reading and second public hearing for Ordinance No. 18-
109.  The budget is required to be adopted by Council pursuant to Section 78 
of the City Charter. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 



PRESENTER(S): 
R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
Dean Stelzer, Finance Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval at third reading 
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 



                                             ORDINANCE NO. 18-109

                        AN ORDINANCE MAKING APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE
                             YEAR 2019 AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY

BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Delaware, State of Ohio:

SECTION 1.  That from and out of the balances in the various funds of the City
of Delaware, and from money anticipated to be received into said funds, there are hereby 
appropriated the following sums for use by the various departments of the City in 
performance of their functions and activities during the year ending December 31, 2019.

GENERAL FUND

CITY COUNCIL  

Personnel 145,812       
Other 34,500         

CITY MANAGER
Personnel 726,421       
Other 97,290         

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES
Personnel 232,744       
Other 125,948       

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
Personnel 215,906       
Other 258,231       

LEGAL AFFAIRS/PROSECUTOR
Personnel 774,298       
Other 68,045         

FINANCE
Personnel 1,185,250    
Other 750,433       

GENERAL ADMINISTRATION
Other 6,090,255    

RISK MANAGEMENT
Other 349,100       

POLICE
Personnel 8,185,715    
Other 919,642       

PLANNING
Personnel 1,097,492    
Other 171,020       

ENGINEERING
Personnel 1,026,462    
Other 962,425       

MUNICIPAL BUILDINGS
Personnel 155,997       
Other 398,961       

TOTAL GENERAL FUND 23,971,947    

STREET MAINTENANCE & REPAIR

Administration
Personnel 705,935        

Other 215,814       
Street Maintenance  

Personnel 699,840       
Other 919,237       

Traffic Division  

Personnel 391,690       
Other 380,819       

TOTAL STREET MAINTENANCE 3,313,335      



STATE HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENT 300,000         

LICENSE FEE FUND 557,750         

  

STORM SEWER FUND  

Operations
Personnel 244,471       
Other 295,993       

Projects
Other 840,000       

TOTAL STORM SEWER 1,380,464      

PARKS & RECREATION FUND

Park Maintenance
Personnel 944,580       
Other 297,550       

Recreation
Other 200,000       

Urban Forestry
Personnel 84,080         
Other 62,550         

TOTAL PARKS & RECREATION 1,588,760      

CEMETERY FUND

Personnel 197,501       
Other 117,612       

TOTAL CEMETERY FUND 315,113         

TREE FUND 65,000           

AIRPORT OPERATIONS FUND

Personnel 199,847       
Other 774,379       

TOTAL AIRPORT OPERATIONS FUND 974,226         

AIRPORT 2000 T-HANGAR FUND 94,213           

FIRE/EMS OPERATINS FUND

Personnel 8,574,258    
Other 2,607,821    

TOTAL FIRE/EMS OPERATIONS FUND 11,182,079    

MUNICIPAL COURT

 Judicial  

Personnel 1,423,083    
Other 71,000         

Mission Court
Personnel 20,873         

 Clerk of Courts
Personnel 1,240,751    
Other 84,900         

TOTAL MUNICIPAL COURT 2,840,607      

RECREATION CENTER INCOME TAX 1,787,256      

SKY CLIMBER/V&P HYDRAULICS TIF FUND 70,000           

MILL RUN TIF FUND 170,000         

IDIAM FUND 60,000           

DRUG ENFORCEMENT FUND 50,000           

INDIGENT ALCOHOL TREATMENT FUND 100,000         



OMVI ENFORCEMENT & EDUCATION FUND 2,759             

POLICE JUDGMENT FUND 110,000         

PARKS EXACTION FEE FUND 143,000         

COMPUTER LEGAL RESEARCH FUND 307,246         

COURT SPECIAL PROJECTS FUND 367,618         

COURT PROBATION SERVICES FUND 343,350         

POLICE DISABILITY PENSION FUND 253,000         

FIRE DISABILITY PENSION FUND 253,000         

COMMUNITY PROMOTION FUND 114,000         

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT FUND 139,000         

REVOLVING LOAN FUND 200,000         

GENERAL BOND RETIREMENT FUND 2,034,964      

PARK IMPROVEMENT BOND FUND 1,320,402      

SE HIGHLAND SEWER BOND FUND 996,609         

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS FUND 7,131,331      

POINT PROJECT CAPITAL FUND 2,333,333      

FAA AIRPORT AIP GRANT FUND 333,000         

 

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND 646,323         

PARK IMPACT FEE FUND 250,000         

POLICE IMPACT FEE FUND 59,565           

FIRE IMPACT FEE FUND 100,000         

MUNICIPAL IMPACT FEE IMPROVEMENT FUND 346,660         

GLENN ROAD SOUTH CONSTRUCTION FUND 10,138,632    

GLENN ROAD NORTH CONSTRUCTION FUND 134,195         

GLENN ROAD TIF FUND 1,917,482      

GOLF COURSE FUND

Personnel 68,451         
Other 114,950       

TOTAL GOLF COURSE FUND 183,401         

PARKING LOT FUND 55,120           

WATER FUND

Administration
Personnel 266,524       
Other 2,889,559    

Treatment
Personnel 908,902       
Other 1,268,864    

Distribution
Personnel 574,314       
Other 428,050       

TOTAL WATER FUND 6,336,213      



WATER CONSTRUCTION FUND 2,585,728      

WATER CAPACITY FEE FUND 2,968,798      

WATER CUSTOMER DEPOSIT FUND 32,000           

SEWER FUND

Administration
Personnel 209,721       
Other 4,123,163    

Treatment
Personnel 908,902       
Other 1,076,600    

Maintenance
Personnel 404,331       
Other 352,330       

TOTAL SEWER FUND 7,075,047      

SEWER CONSTRUCTION FUND 1,442,697      

 

SEWER CAPACITY FEE FUND 4,222,381      

SE HIGHLAND SEWER FUND 975,501         

 

REFUSE FUND

Administration
Other 439,900       

Refuse Collection
Personnel 741,225       
Other 1,601,352    

Recycling Collection
Personnel 462,539       
Other 568,200       

TOTAL REFUSE FUND 3,813,216      

GARAGE ROTARY FUND   
Personnel 344,759       
Other 363,230       

TOTAL GARAGE ROTARY FUND 707,989         

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY ROTARY FUND   

Staff Support  
Personnel 508,598       
Other 32,767         

System Support  
Other 703,207       

GIS Operations  
Personnel 80,538         
Other 59,056         

TOTAL IT ROTARY FUND 1,384,166      

SELF INSURANCE FUND 6,472,000      

 

WORKERS COMPENSATION RESERVE FUND 560,000         

FIRE DONATION FUND 6,000             

PARKS DONATION FUND 6,315             

POLICE DONATION FUND 8,000             

MAYOR'S DONATION FUND 2,800             

PROJECT TRUST FUND 47,000           

 

UNCLAIMED FUNDS TRUST FUND 8,000             

UNCLAIMED FUNDS COURT FUND 2,500             



 

GENERAL RESERVE FUND 59,285           

JEDD INCOME TAX FUND 505,000         

CEMETERY PERPETUAL CARE FUND 2,000             

STATE HIGHWAY PATROL FUND 75,000           

STATE BUILDING PERMIT FEE FUND 15,000           

PERFORMANCE BOND FUND 807,301         

   TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS - ALL FUNDS 119,154,677  

SECTION 2.  That the Finance Director is hereby authorized to make payment from any
of the foregoing appropriations to the extent of the amounts contained in the respective
appropriations whenever claims, duly approved by the officer authorized by law to approve such
claims, are presented.

SECTION 3.  That the Finance Director is hereby authorized and empowered to make
necessary changes which are not in conflict with this ordinance within a given appropriation to
carry out the functions of the City.  No changes to the total amount of a departmental or fund
appropriation may be made without the legislative action of the City Council.

SECTION 4.  That any sums which shall be expended from the above appropriation and
which are a proper charge against any other department, or against any person, firm or corporation,
shall, if repaid within the period covered by such appropriation, be credited to the fund from which
such payment was made.

SECTION 5.  In accordance with Ohio Revised Code Sections 5705.14, 5705.15, 
and 5705.16 the Finance Director is hereby authorized to make the interfund transfers
identified in the 2019 Budget Detail presented to, and approved by, City Council as part of 
the 2019 Budget adoption process.

SECTION 6.  That the Clerk of Council is directed to certify a copy of this ordinance to
the Budget Commission of Delaware County.

SECTION 7. Emergency Clause.  That this ordinance is hereby declared to be an
emergency measure necessary to provide for the public peace, safety, health and welfare of the
City, and further to provide lawful appropriations available for expenditure by January 1, 2019, and
as such will be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage.

VOTE ON EMERGENCY CLAUSE: Yeas ____ Nays ____

PASSED: ________________, 2018 Yeas ____ Nays ____

ATTEST:
Clerk Mayor



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  10    DATE:  12/10/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO:  18-65 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING:  NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:   
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING GUIDELINES FOR ESTABLISHING NEW 
COMMUNITY AUTHORITIES. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
UPDATE 12/10/2018:   
At the November 26 meeting, Council discussed having a working group to 
review the draft resolution and recommend potential changes.  The working 
group has been established and will need to determine a time for a meeting.  
Staff recommends tabling Resolution No. 18-65 until the working group has an 
opportunity to meet.  
 
11/26/2018: 
While the city has two new community authorities (NCA) used to fund public 
infrastructure, it does not have an NCA led by a developer.  The City has now 
received a request to create a developer led NCA to reimburse them for costs 
associated with the Terra Alta project.  As a result, the following guidelines 
were requested to provide clarity to guide future proposals.   
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Adopting the guidelines as a resolution will enable any potential requesters to 
easily view them to assit in crafting an NCA request. 
 
 



FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
The guidelines themselves have no fiscal impact.  Approving the NCA itself 
could have an impact on the city. 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
This would be the first set of guidelines established to aid in deciding when the 
city will accept an NCA request. 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Darren Shulman, City Attorney 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Recommend to table Resolution No. 18-65 until the established working group 
has an opportunity to meet.  
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
N/A 



RESOLUTION NO. 18-65 
 
 A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING GUIDELINES FOR 

ESTABLISHING NEW COMMUNITY AUTHORITIES. 
 

WHEREAS, a New Community Authority (NCA) is a development tool in 
which a charge is placed on property and used to pay for development 
expenses; and 

 
WHEREAS, this charge appears on residents’ property tax bill which can 

impact residents’ view of their city tax burden and lead to calls to the city 
asking about the charge; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Delaware currently has two city initiated New 

Community Authorities to pay for infrastructure installed by the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has been approached by a private developer 

interested in establishing a developer driven NCA; and 
 
WHEREAS, City Council desires to establish approval criteria for future 

NCAs to provide advance notice to developers who may be interested in 
requesting the City establish one. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF DELAWARE, OHIO THAT: 
 
 SECTION 1. City Council will apply the following guidelines in evaluating 
requests to establish a New Community Authority: 
 

1. NCA can be used to reimburse the city for infrastructure put in that 
benefits the development 

 
2. NCA will not be approved to reimburse for building cost of items already 

built/installed 
 

3. NCA will not be approved to reimburse for the cost of items typically 
required to be paid by developer, including but not limited to on-site local 
roads and utility lines. 
 

4. The City will consider approving NCAs to cover amenities and 
infrastructure which have demonstrable utility above and beyond that 
which is required for the development as determined by the City 
Engineer.  Amenities and infrastructure must have a recognizable direct 
value to the residents living in the authority or major pieces of public 
infrastructure that have utility for more than just the development as 
determined by the City Engineer (such as Glenn Parkway) .   



 
5. Length of time: City prefers NCAs with a time limit that has the effect of 

eliminating the additional charge or converting a home owner association 
charge to the same or lower total charge.  The purpose is to allow an 
HOA to be converted to an NCA which produces tax benefits for purposes 
of holding land while not increasing (and hopefully decreasing) the 
previous HOA fee.  

 
6. The City may approve new community authorities containing a minimum 

of 200 total gross acres. 
 

7. Amount: The city prefers NCA millage to be 5 mills or less but which 
shall be under no circumstance greater than 7.5 mills 

 
8. Disclosure: The city requires disclosure to potential renters, property 

owners, and other effected parties of the NCA charge.  This can be 
recorded separately upon the property and deed or as otherwise required 
in the sole discretion and direction of the city. 

 
SECTION 2. That this resolution shall be in force and effect immediately 

upon its passage. 
 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 
 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEMS NO:  11    DATE: 12/10/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-90  (UPDATED)   RESOLUTION NO:  
 
READING: FIFTH     PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
(Public Hearing held pursuant to Ordinance 18-77 on October 8, 2018 at 
7:30 p.m.) 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Darren Shulman, City Attorney 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION: 
AN ORDINANCE FINDING THAT THE CREATION OF THE TERRA ALTA 
COMMUNITY AUTHORITY WILL BE CONDUCIVE TO THE PUBLIC HEALTH, 
SAFETY, CONVENIENCE AND WELFARE AND IS INTENDED TO RESULT IN 
THE DEVELOPMENT OF A NEW COMMUNITY; DECLARING THAT AUTHORITY 
TO BE ORGANIZED AND A BODY POLITIC AND CORPORATE; DEFINING THE 
BOUNDARY OF THAT AUTHORITY’S NEW COMMUNITY DISTRICT; 
PROVIDING THE METHOD OF APPOINTING MEMBERS TO THAT THE 
AUTHORITY’S BOARD OF TRUSTEES AND FIXING THE SURETY FOR THOSE 
TRUSTEES’ BONDS.  

BACKGROUND: 
UPDATE 12/10/2018: 
The ordinance has been amended to reference the amended petition, which the 
Applicant submitted to reflect the discussion at the November 26 Council 
meeting.  Among other things the petition establishes a 7.5 millage charge, 
with the proceeds of .5 mills to be used at the direction of the City for river 
access (see amended petition page D-4) and 7 mills committed to the payment 
of debt services on up to $5,822,000 in borrowing to fund community facilities 
that have not been installed as of November 1, 2018, and the cost of which 
have not been incurred. (see amended petition pages C-2 and D-5) 
 
 



 
UPDATE 11/8/2018: 
Staff has completed its analysis of the developer’s NCA request and makes the 
following recommendation.  Should Council be inclined to approve an NCA for 
this project, staff recommends the amount be set at 4 mills, with .5 mills being 
directed to the City to fund access to the river. This would leave 3.5 mills, 
which according to materials provided by the developer, would provide between 
$3 and $3.5 million in capital financing to help fund an agreed upon list of 
improvements.  By way of comparison, the current petition requests 7.5 mills, 
and the developer has since proposed 5.5 mills based on feedback provided by 
staff and Council. 
Staff would also recommend including language in the petition indicating the 
charge would be substantially reduced (absent action by the homeowners) once 
that list of improvements has been paid for.   
 
UPDATE:  10/18/2018 
Unfortunately, as of this writing staff has not had a chance to meet with the 
applicant to discuss changes to the petition.  At this point, should council wish 
to proceed with the developer’s recent request to establish the NCA at the 
revised amount of 5.5 mills, the petition would need to be amended to reflect 
this.  In addition, language will need to be included regarding the length of the 
term and appointment to the authority as provided in Section 7.   
 
10/08/2018: 
A New Community Authority (NCA) is a charge put on residents’ property tax 
bill to help pay for infrastructure in the authority area.  The charge is usually 
used as a tool to facilitate future development.   
 
The City has two existing NCAs, which were created to help finance 
infrastructure put in by the City after the formation of the NCA. When the 
infrastructure is paid off, the charges will be removed from the taxes in the 
existing NCAs. 
 
The City has experienced some issues with residents in the current NCAs.  For 
example, the charge is often a source of confusion for residents who do not 
understand what the charge pays for.  Some residents feel the charge is too 
high.  Because it is based on millage (property tax value), owners of new 
houses are often surprised by the charge even though it was disclosed, because 
the tax rate on the auditor’s website is based on the value of the land when it 
was vacant.  Finally, during the levy campaign, residents in the NCA indicated 
they felt their NCA charge should already cover roads and were therefore 
reluctant to approve additional taxes. 
 
These agenda items are being placed together to track the public hearing (set 
by Ord. 18-77 as part of the NCA approval process) with the ordinance it is 
related to.  It is possible this ordinance will change prior to adoption as it is 



being reviewed by bond counsel.  If Council adopts guidelines for approving an 
NCA, a reference to those guidelines would also be added.  Prior to adoption of 
the ordinance, the applicant would need to amend the petition to reflect any 
changes Council may require regarding the amount and length of the NCA 
charge. 
 
A draft set of guidelines for future NCA charges is included in this packet for 
discussion purposes. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Council previously passed legislation declaring the NCA Petition was sufficient.  
The next step is consideration of whether to approve the NCA on policy 
grounds.  The public hearing was set by the prior legislation and this 
legislation is the vehicle for Council to decide to approve or deny the request.   
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
The petition anticipates 2250 new residents will reside in the district at full 
build out. The requested NCA would add a 7.5 mills charge to each parcel of 
property in the district.  This would result in a $.75 charge for each $1,000 of 
assessed valuation, which would appear on the residents’ property tax bill. 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
The present request being brought forward by the developer differs from our 
existing NCAs in the following ways. First, it would reimburse the developer as 
opposed to the City.  Second, the developer has indicated that it is intended to 
help finance amenities, but the majority of the items the developer would be 
reimbursed for through the charge are infrastructure items that traditionally 
are a developer’s responsibility to install. Third, part of the charge would go 
towards reimbursing the developer for infrastructure that has already been 
built, which does not fit with the City’s prior use of an NCA to finance future 
development.  Finally, the proposed NCA has no set end date. 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
R. Thomas Homan 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff is concerned that by adding a significant cost to the property tax bill of 
2250 new residents of the city, it will make it more difficult for city and school 
levies to pass.  In addition, based on the volume of calls generated by the 
existing NCAs, staff anticipates additional staff time will be required to help 
these new residents understand the charge.  Finally, staff believes approving 
this NCA will set a precedent for future NCA requests.  To the extent these 
expenses are related to amenities, they could be financed by a homeowners 



association (HOA) charge, which would make it clear what the charge is paying 
for and eliminate any confusion over perceived increased taxes.   
 
Since the filing of the petition, the developer has submitted a letter indicating 
they would accept a reduction to a 5.5 mill charge. Staff will present 
recommendations regarding the charge amount and term at the meeting.  The 
developer would have to amend the petition to effectuate any change. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Amended Petition 
 



Page 1 of 4 
 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 18-90 

AN ORDINANCE FINDING THAT THE CREATION OF 
THE TERRA ALTA COMMUNITY AUTHORITY WILL BE 
CONDUCIVE TO THE PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY, 
CONVENIENCE AND WELFARE AND IS INTENDED TO 
RESULT IN THE DEVELOPMENT OF A NEW 
COMMUNITY; DECLARING THAT AUTHORITY TO BE 
ORGANIZED AND A BODY POLITIC AND 
CORPORATE; DEFINING THE BOUNDARY OF THAT 
AUTHORITY’S NEW COMMUNITY DISTRICT; 
PROVIDING THE METHOD OF APPOINTING 
MEMBERS TO THAT THE AUTHORITY’S BOARD OF 
TRUSTEES AND FIXING THE SURETY FOR THOSE 
TRUSTEES’ BONDS.  

WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 349 of the Ohio Revised Code, Terra 
Alta, LLC (the “Developer”) filed a petition (the “Petition”) with the Council Clerk 
for the City of Delaware as provided in Section 349.03(A) of the Ohio Revised 
Code, with that Petition being for the establishment of The Terra Alta 
Community Authority (the “Authority”) and its proposed new community 
district (the “District”); and 

WHEREAS, this Council comprises the “organizational board of 
commissioners” for the proposed Authority, as that term is defined in Section 
349.01(F) of the Ohio Revised Code; and 

WHEREAS, by its Ordinance No. 18-77 adopted on September 10, 2018, 
this Council determined that the Petition complies with the requirements of 
Section 349.03 of the Ohio Revised Code and fixed the time and place for a 
public hearing on the establishment of the Authority pursuant to Section 
349.03(A) of the Ohio Revised Code, and that public hearing was held by this 
Council on October 8, 2018, after notice of that public hearing was published 
as required by law; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 349.04 of the Ohio Revised Code, this 
Council is responsible for establishing the method for selection of members of 
the Authority’s Board of Trustees and fixing their sureties; and 

WHEREAS, FOLLOWING THAT PUBLIC HEARING, ON NOVEMBER 27, 
2018 COUNCIL RECEIVED AN AMENDED PETITION REFLECTING 
CHANGES TO ADDRESS COMMENTS AND CONCERNS PRESENTED 
DURING THE PUBLIC HEARING AND CONSIDERATION OF THIS 
ORDINANCE; AND 



Page 2 of 4 
 

WHEREAS, COUNCIL DESIRES TO ACCEPTS THE AMENDMENTS TO 
THE ORIGINAL PETITION THAT WAS SUBMITTED; AND 

WHEREAS, PURSUANT TO SECTION 349.04 OF THE OHIO REVISED 
CODE, THIS COUNCIL IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ESTABLISHING THE 
METHOD FOR SELECTION OF MEMBERS OF THE AUTHORITY’S BOARD 
OF TRUSTEES AND FIXING THEIR SURETIES.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 

SECTION 1. This Council finds and determines that the District will be 
conducive to the public health, safety, convenience and welfare and is intended 
to result in the development of a new community as defined in Section 
349.01(A) of the Ohio Revised Code. 
 

SECTION 2. The Petition, as revised AMENDED and on file with the 
Council Clerk, is hereby accepted and shall be recorded, along with this 
Ordinance, in the journal of this Council, as the organizational board of 
commissioners, pursuant to Section 349.03 of the Ohio Revised Code. 
 

SECTION 3. The Authority is hereby organized and a body politic and 
corporate. 
 

SECTION 4. The corporate name of the Authority shall be “The Terra Alta 
Community Authority.” 
 

SECTION 5. The District shall have the boundaries set forth in the 
Petition. 
 

SECTION 6. The Board of Trustees of the Authority shall be composed of 
seven members. This Council shall appoint four members to the Board of 
Trustees (the “Citizen Members”), one of whom shall be appointed to represent 
local government (the “Local Government Representative”). The Developer shall 
appoint the remaining three members of the Board of Trustees to serve as 
representatives of the Developer (the “Developer Members”). Of its initial four 
appointments, Council shall designate two of those Citizen Members to serve 
initial one year terms and two of those Citizen Members to serve initial two year 
terms; and of its initial three appointments, the Developer shall designate two 
of those Developer Members to serve initial one year terms and one of those 
Developer Members to serve an initial two-year term. These initial 
appointments to the Board of Trustees of the Authority and all successor 
Members appointed or reappointed thereafter shall be appointed pursuant to 
and as provided by this Ordinance and Section 349.04 of the Ohio Revised 
Code. This Council shall appoint or reappoint, as appropriate, Citizen 
Members; and the Developer shall appoint or reappoint, as appropriate, 



Page 3 of 4 
 

Developer Members. Except as otherwise provided in this Section, all members 
of the Authority’s Board of Trustees shall be appointed to two year overlapping 
terms; provided that, notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance, 
the term of any Member shall not end until the due qualification for and 
assumption of office by a successor member duly appointed or reappointed, as 
applicable, all as provided herein and in Section 349.04 of the Ohio Revised 
Code. The oath of each member shall be filed with the Clerk of this Council. 
The appointments of Developer Members, including any necessary designations 
of terms, shall be in writing and filed with the Clerk of Council within ten (10) 
days after they are made. No Citizen Member shall be an employee of or have a 
financial interest in the Developer. Except as otherwise provided in this 
Section, at such time as this Council receives written notice from the Developer 
that the Developer no longer desires to appoint members to the Board of 
Trustees, arrangements shall be made by this Council and the Board of 
Trustees of the Authority for all members of the Board of Trustees to be elected 
as provided in Section 349.04 of the Revised Code with said election being 
conducted in the manner provided or customary for the election of a board of 
directors under Chapter 5312 of the Ohio Revised Code.  

 
SECTION 7. The CITY SHALL MAKE ITS APPOINTMENTS WITHIN TEN 

DAYS OF THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THIS ORDINANCE.  
following individuals are appointed by this Council to the following terms 

on the Board of Trustees of the Authority: 
 

Appointee Term Ending Member 
Designation 

Name: 
 
Address: 
 

  

Name: 
 
Address: 
 

  

Name: 
 
Address: 

  

Name: 
 
Address: 

  

 
 

SECTION 8. Pursuant to Section 349.04 of the Ohio Revised Code, each 
member of the Board of Trustees of the Authority, before entering upon their 



Page 4 of 4 
 

official duties, shall take and subscribe to an oath that the member will 
honestly and faithfully perform the duties of their office. That oath shall be filed 
in the office of the Clerk of Council. 
 

SECTION 9. Pursuant to Section 349.04 of the Ohio Revised Code, there 
shall be posted for each member of the Board of Trustees of the Authority a 
bond in the amount of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000) for the faithful 
performance of his or her duties. The bond shall be with a company authorized 
to conduct business within the State of Ohio as a surety and shall be deposited 
with and preserved by the Clerk of Council. 
 

SECTION 10. This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council and any of its 
committees, and that all deliberations of this Council and any of its committees 
that resulted in those formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in 
compliance with the law including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code. 
 
 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018  YEAS____ NAYS____ 
       ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 
 
 

DMS 13255265v4 



TERRA 
ALTA 

AMENDED 
PETITION 

12/10/2018 



































































































































































TERRA ALTA 
ORIGINAL 

SUBMISSION 
AND 

MATERIALS  















 

Draft NCA Guidelines 

* NCA can be used to reimburse the city for infrastructure put in that benefits the development 

* NCA will not be approved to reimburse for building cost of items already built/installed 

* NCA will not be approved to reimburse for the cost of items typically required to be paid by developer, 
including but not limited to on-site local roads and utility lines.  

* The City will consider approving NCAs to cover amenities and infrastructure which have demonstrable 
utility above and beyond that which is required for the development as determined by the City 
Engineer.  Amenities and infrastructure must have a recognizable direct value to the residents living in 
the authority or major pieces of public infrastructure that have utility for more than just the 
development as determined by the City Engineer (such as Glenn Parkway) .   

* Length of time: City prefers NCAs with a time limit that has the effect of eliminating the additional 
charge or converting a home owner association charge to the same or lower total charge.  The purpose 
is to allow an HOA to be converted to an NCA which produces tax benefits for purposes of holding land 
while not increasing (and hopefully decreasing) the previous HOA fee.  

* The City may approve new community authorities containing a minimum of 200 total gross acres. 

* The city prefers NCA millage to be 5 mills or less but which shall be under no circumstance greater 
than 7.5 mills. 

* The city requires disclosure to potential renters, property owners, and other effected parties of the 
NCA charge.  This can be recorded separately upon the property and deed or as otherwise required in 
the sole discretion and direction of the city. 

























































































































































































































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  12    DATE: 12/10/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-105   RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: THIRD    PUBLIC HEARING:  NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A PRELIMINARY SUBDIVISION PLAT REQUEST 
BY MAKAPA LLC., FOR BELLE COMMONS FOR FOUR SINGLE FAMILY LOTS 
ON APPROXIMATELY 1.344 ACRES ON PROPERTY ZONED R-3 (ONE-FAMILY 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) AND LOCATED ON THE NORTH SIDE OF BELLE 
AVENUE AND ON THE EAST SIDE OF LIBERTY ROAD.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached report 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1111 Subdivision Regulations of the 
zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 6-0 on November 7, 2018. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
 



PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval as submitted with the documented conditions. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-105 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A PRELIMINARY 
SUBDIVISION PLAT REQUEST BY MAKAPA LLC., FOR 
BELLE COMMONS FOR FOUR SINGLE FAMILY LOTS 
ON APPROXIMATELY 1.344 ACRES ON PROPERTY 
ZONED R-3 (ONE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) 
AND LOCATED ON THE NORTH SIDE OF BELLE 
AVENUE AND ON THE EAST SIDE OF LIBERTY ROAD.  
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of November 7, 2018 
recommended approval of a Preliminary Subdivision Plat by Makapa LLC., for 
Belle Commons for four single family lots on approximately 1.344 acres on 
property zoned R-3 (One-Family Residential District) and located on the north side 
of Belle Avenue and on the east side of Liberty Road (PC Case 2018-1968). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Preliminary Subdivision Plat by Makapa LLC., for 
Belle Commons for four single family lots on approximately 1.344 acres on 
property zoned R-3 (One-Family Residential District) and located on the north side 
of Belle Avenue and the east side of Liberty Road is hereby confirmed, approved, 
and accepted with on the following conditions that: 
 

1. The engineering drawing shall be approved by the City Engineer prior to 
approval of any building permit. 

2. A sidewalk shall be required for each single family lot prior to final 
occupancy permit of the subject single family house. 

3. The single family houses shall achieve compliance with the R-3 zoning 
requirements in Chapter 1134 Residential District Requirements. 

4. The single family houses shall achieve compliance with Chapter 1171.08 
Residential Development Design Criteria and Performance Standards. 

5. Street trees shall be required for each single family house per the City 
requirements. 

6. Each house and lot shall achieve compliance with all other City 
development requirements. 

7. Any tree 6 inches or larger removed during the construction of the 
house(s) shall be replaced per Chapter 1168 Tree Preservation 
Regulations. 
 



SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  13    DATE: 12/10/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-106   RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: THIRD    PUBLIC HEARING:  NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL SUBDIVISION PLAT REQUEST BY 
MAKAPA LLC., FOR BELLE COMMONS FOR FOUR SINGLE FAMILY LOTS ON 
APPROXIMATELY 1.344 ACRES ON PROPERTY ZONED R-3 (ONE-FAMILY 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) AND LOCATED ON THE NORTH SIDE OF BELLE 
AVENUE AND ON THE EAST SIDE OF LIBERTY ROAD.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached report 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1111 Subdivision Regulations of the 
zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 6-0 on November 7, 2018. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
 



PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval as submitted with the documented conditions. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-106 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL SUBDIVISION 
PLAT REQUEST BY MAKAPA LLC., FOR BELLE 
COMMONS FOR FOUR SINGLE FAMILY LOTS ON 
APPROXIMATELY 1.344 ACRES ON PROPERTY ZONED 
R-3 (ONE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) AND 
LOCATED ON THE NORTH SIDE OF BELLE AVENUE 
AND ON THE EAST SIDE OF LIBERTY ROAD.  
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of November 7, 2018 
recommended approval of a Final Subdivision Plat by Makapa LLC., for Belle 
Commons for four single family lots on approximately 1.344 acres on property 
zoned R-3 (One-Family Residential District) and located on the north side of Belle 
Avenue and on the east side of Liberty Road (PC Case 2018-1969).  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Final Subdivision Plat by Makapa LLC., for Belle 
Commons for four single family lots on approximately 1.344 acres on property 
zoned R-3 (One-Family Residential District) and located on the north side of Belle 
Avenue and the east side of Liberty Road, Is hereby confirmed, approved, and 
accepted with on the following conditions that: 
 

1. The engineering drawing shall be approved by the City Engineer prior to 
approval of any building permit. 

2. A sidewalk shall be required for each single family lot prior to final 
occupancy permit of the subject single family house. 

3. The single family houses shall achieve compliance with the R-3 zoning 
requirements in Chapter 1134 Residential District Requirements. 

4. The single family houses shall achieve compliance with Chapter 1171.08 
Residential Development Design Criteria and Performance Standards. 

5. Street trees shall be required for each single family house per the City 
requirements. 

6. Each house and lot shall achieve compliance with all other City 
development requirements. 

7. Any tree 6 inches or larger removed during the construction of the 
house(s) shall be replaced per Chapter 1168 Tree Preservation 
Regulations. 
 



SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 





























BELLE COMMONS 
 

PUBLIC 
COMMENT  

& 
 LETTERS 







  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  14    DATE: 12/10/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-110   RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA: Judge David Sunderman, Judge Marianne Hemmeter and Clerk 

Cindy Dinovo 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE DELAWARE MUNICIPAL COURT AND 
CLERK OF COURT EMPLOYEE BENEFITS AND LEAVE POLICIES, AND 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Municipal Court and Clerk of Court’s 2019 Employee Benefits and Leave 
Polices are attached.  
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Judge Marianne Hemmeter and Clerk Cindy Dinovo 
 
 



RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval at third reading   
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
2019 Pay Plan 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-110 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE DELAWARE 
MUNICIPAL COURT AND CLERK OF COURT EMPLOYEE 
BENEFITS AND LEAVE POLICIES, AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY. 

 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Delaware, State of Ohio: 

 
SECTION 1.  That the Delaware Municipal Court and Clerk of Court 

Employee Benefits and Leave Policies shall be amended to reflect the noted 
changes (attached hereto). 
 

SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
SECTON 3. EMERGENCY CLAUSE. This Ordinance is declared to be an 

emergency measure necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, 
property, health, safety and welfare of the City. The emergency clause is required 
to enact the changes effective on December 26, 2018.  Therefore this Ordinance 
shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:    YEAS____NAYS____  
           ABSTAIN ____ 
 
VOTE ON EMERGENCY CLAUSE:    YEAS____NAYS____  
           ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018  YEAS____ NAYS____ 
       ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________        ________________________ 

CITY CLERK     MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  15    DATE:  12/10/2018  
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-111   RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING:  NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Jackie Walker, Assistant City Manager  
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 17-78 ESTABLISHING THE PAY 
AND BENEFITS FOR VARIOUS PART-TIME AND INTERMITTENT/SEASONAL 
EMPLOYEES OF THE CITY OF DELAWARE, AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The proposed 2019 budget reflects an increase in wages by 2% for all 
permanent part-time positions.  As a result of conducting an external seasonal 
pay-rate comparison in response to difficulty staffing seasonal laborer positions 
during the 2018 season, the intermittent part-time/seasonal wage table has 
been adjusted.  This change will increase our ability to recruit qualified 
individuals for these positions, reduce the time to fill these positions, provide 
internal and external pay equity as municipal pay rate comparisons have 
increased, incentivize past employees to return and condense the number of 
seasonal pay grades. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Legislation is necessary in order to process payroll changes. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 



2 percent increase for all permanent part-time positions.  Wage table 
adjustment for intermittent part-time/seasonal positions, as reflected in the 
proposed 2019 budget.   
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Jackie Walker, Assistant City Manager 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval at 3rd Reading 
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
N/A 



ORDINANCE NO. 18-111 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 17-78 
ESTABLISHING THE PAY AND BENEFITS FOR 
VARIOUS PART-TIME AND INTERMITTENT, AND 
SEASONAL EMPLOYEES OF THE CITY OF 
DELAWARE AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

 
WHEREAS, the City hires various part-time, intermittent/seasonal 

employees that can be divided into two classifications, to wit: permanent part- 
time and intermittent seasonal, and 

 
WHEREAS, Section 155.09, Appointment Status, of the Codified 

Ordinances of the City of Delaware defines part-time employment, and 
Ordinance No. 15-115 established pay and benefits for various part-time 
employees of the City, and 

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to clarify the wages and benefits for each 

classification of part-time and intermittent/seasonal employees. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 

 
SECTION 1. Ordinance No. 17-78 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 
A. Effective DECEMBER 26, 2018 permanent part-time employees 

shall receive the following wages and benefits: 
 

1. Wages. Permanent  part-time  employees  shall  be paid on an 
hourly basis in accordance with the following table: 

 
Pay 

Grade 
STEP 

1 
STEP 

2 
STEP 

3 
STEP 

4 
STEP 

5 
PT 1 9.24 9.58 9.98 10.19 10.39 
PT 2 13.94 14.48 15.08 15.69 16.29 
PT 3 14.66 15.24 15.81 16.49 17.15 
PT 4 16.88 17.56 18.27 19.00 19.76 
PT 5 19.56 20.17 20.79 21.44 22.07 
PT 6 22.34 23.00 23.61 24.33 25.05 

 
 

PAY GRADE POSITION 
PT 1…………………………………. Facility Maintenance Technician I 

  PT 2…………………………………. Support Services Aide,  Parking 
 Control Officer 
PT 3…………………………………. Facility Maintenance Technician II 
 Clerical Specialist, Records Clerk, 
 RECORDS ANALYST, Laborer, Front 
 Counter Clerk, Help-Desk Technician 



PT 4…………………………………. COMMUNICATIONS SPECIALIST,  
  PARALEGAL, LABORER 

  PT 5…………………………………. Investigator/Diversion 
   Manager, Code Enforcement   

  Officer 
PT 6…………………………………. Human Resource Coordinator 

 
2. Benefits.  Benefits for permanent part-time are as follows: 

(a) Employees will accrue Universal Leave on a prorated basis 
of 4.6 hours for every eighty hours worked in a pay period. 

(b) Employees are eligible for holiday pay if they work a major 
holiday which includes the following:  Christmas, Labor 
Day, Memorial Day, July 4, New Year's Day and 
Thanksgiving. Holiday Pay is defined as one and one half 
times the employee’s regular hourly rate. 

(c) Overtime shall be compensated at straight time rates for 
all hours in paid status, except that all hours in paid 
status in excess of 40 hours in any work week shall be 
compensated for a rate of time and one half. 

(d) The employee shall be responsible for payment of the 
employee contribution for the State of Ohio Retirement 
System. 

(e) Upon termination of employment with the City employees 
will not receive pay-out for any leave accumulated. 

(f) If an employee becomes full time with the City, any 
accumulated Universal Leave will be added to the 
employee’s sick leave balance. 

(g) Employees shall receive a Parks and Recreation Credit to 
be applied to a Jack Florance Pool membership, City Golf 
Course membership or punch-card, or City rentals 
(shelters or HIlborn Room). The amount of the credit shall 
be $60.00. Employees shall abide by the stipulations set 
forth by the managing organization both in definition and 
restrictions. This credit amount is fixed, regardless of 
changes in membership fees that may occur. Employees 
will also receive a 20% discount on all individual 
registrations for City recreation programs. Credits may 
not be used to purchase memberships or to secure rentals 
beyond the calendar year for which it is issued. Credits 
will not be re-issued if lost or stolen and must be 
surrendered at the time of registration/purchase.   Credits 
are non-transferrable. 

 
B. Effective December 26, 2018 permanent part-time firefighters shall 

be paid on an hourly basis in accordance with the following table: 
 
 
 
 
 



PAY GRADE POSITION WAGE 

PTFF1 Firefighter/EMT 13.26/hour 

PTFF2 Firefighter/Paramedic 15.30/hour 
 

1. Benefits. Benefits for permanent part-time firefighters are as 
follows: 

 
(a) The City will provide $10,000 of life insurance. 
(b) Overtime shall be compensated at straight time rates for 

all hours in paid status, except that all hours in paid 
status in excess of 2 12 hours in any 28 day pay cycle 
shall be compensated for a rate of time and one half. 

(c) The employee will be responsible for payment of the 
employee contribution to their pension system. 

(d) Employees are eligible for holiday pay if they work a major 
holiday which includes the following:  Christmas, Labor 
Day, Memorial Day, July 4, New Year's Day and 
Thanksgiving. Holiday pay is defined as one and one half 
times the employee’s regular hourly rate. 

(e) Permanent part-time firefighters may not exceed 1500 
hours worked in a calendar year. 

(g)    Employees shall receive a Parks and Recreation Credit to 
be applied to a Jack Florance Pool membership, City Golf 
Course membership or punch-card, or City rentals 
(shelters or HIlborn Room). The amount of the credit shall 
be $60.00. Employees shall abide by the stipulations set 
forth by the managing organization both in definition and 
restrictions. This credit amount is fixed, regardless of 
changes in membership fees that may occur. Employees 
will also receive a 20% discount on all individual 
registrations for City recreation programs. Credits may 
not be used to purchase memberships or to secure rentals 
beyond the calendar year for which it is issued. Credits 
will not be re-issued if lost or stolen and must be 
surrendered at the time of registration/purchase.   Credits 
are non-transferrable. 

 
C. Effective DECEMBER 26, 2018 intermittent part-time/seasonal 

employees shall receive the following wages and benefits: 
 

1. Wages. Intermittent part-time/seasonal employees shall be 
paid on an hourly basis in accordance with the following 
table: 

 
 
 
 
 



 
Pay 
Grade Position Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 
SL1 Cashier  $10.00   $10.50   $11.00  
SL2 Laborer  $11.50   $12.50   $13.50  
SL3 Intern  $11.50   $13.50   $15.50  

SL4 
Clubhouse 
Manager  $14.00   $15.00   $16.00  

 
For intermittent/seasonal positions not listed above, the wages shall be 
the entry-level pay rate reflected in the applicable pay plan for the 
equivalent permanent full-time position or a pay rate established by the 
City Manager. 

 
2. Benefits. Intermittent /seasonal employees are not eligible  

for benefits, except the following: 
 

(a) The employee shall be responsible for payment of the 
employee contribution for the State of Ohio Retirement 
System. 

 
SECTION 2.  Existing Ordinance No. 17-78 is hereby repealed. 

 
SECTION 3. This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 

 
SECTION 4.  EMERGENCY CLAUSE.  This Ordinance is declared to be 

an emergency measure necessary for the immediate preservation of the public 
peace, property, health, safety and welfare of the City. The emergency clause is 
required to enact the changes effective on DECEMBER 26, 2018. Therefore this 
Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage. 

 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS         NAYS             

ABSTAIN    
 
VOTE ON EMERGENCY CLAUSE: YEAS         NAYS             

ABSTAIN    
 
 

PASSED:   , 2018 YEAS NAYS    
ABSTAIN    

 
 
ATTEST:       

CITY CLERK MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  16    DATE: 12/10/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-112   RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Jackie Walker, Assistant City Manager 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE MANAGEMENT, PROFESSIONAL, 
TECHNICAL, CONFIDENTIAL, AND SUPERVISORY EMPLOYEES PAY PLAN, 
AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The proposed 2018 budget reflects an increase in wages by 2% for the non-
union employee pay plan and 2.5% for the department head pay plan ranges. 
 
Other notable additions/changes include establishing a calendar year 
maximum reimbursement ($3,500) for tuition reimbursement, subject to 
available appropriations. 
 
In addition, the ordinance includes a section authorizing the Finance Director 
to sign an annual OPERS earned time off conversion document.    
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Legislation is necessary in order to process payroll changes.   
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
 
 



FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
A 2 percent increase for all non-union pay plan positions and 2.5 percent 
increase to the department head pay plan ranges, as reflected in the proposed 
2019 budget.   
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Jackie Walker, Assistant City Manager 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval  at Third Reading 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Amended Pay Plan 



ORDINANCE NO. 18-112 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE MANAGEMENT, 
PROFESSIONAL, TECHNICAL, CONFIDENTIAL, AND 
SUPERVISORY EMPLOYEES PAY PLAN, AND 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Delaware, State of Ohio: 

 
SECTION 1.  That the attached Management, Professional, Technical, 

Confidential and Supervisory Pay Plan shall be amended to reflect the noted 
changes. 

 
SECTION 2.   That the Finance Director is hereby authorized to execute 

and submit the annual OPERS earned time conversion document on behalf of 
the City. 
 

SECTION 3.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 

SECTION 4.  EMERGENCY CLAUSE.  This Ordinance is declared to be 
an emergency measure necessary for the immediate preservation of the public 
peace, property, health, safety and welfare of the City. The emergency clause is 
required to enact the changes effective on December 26, 2018 which coincides 
with the new calendar year. Therefore this Ordinance shall be in full force and 
effect immediately upon its passage. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
VOTE ON EMERGENCY CLAUSE: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
  
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 
 



 
 

 
  

The City of Delaware 2019 
Summary of Benefits 

 
 
Professional, Confidential, Supervisory and Non- Union 
Employees  
 
 
12/26/2018 
 
 



2 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
Section I  Pay Plans and Administration 
 

A. Non- Union Employee Pay Plan    Page 3 
B. Department Head Pay Plan    Page 5 
C. Safety Forces Pay Plan     Page 5 
D. Overtime and Compensatory Time – Non Exempt Page 6 
E. Compensatory Time – Exempt Employees  Page 7 

 
Section II  Accrued Time and Various Leaves 
 

A. Vacation       Page 8 
B. Sick Leave       Page 9 
C. Holiday and Personal Days    Page 11 
D. Funeral Leave      Page 12 
E. Special Leave      Page 13 
F. Jury Duty Leave      Page 12 
G. Court Leave      Page 13 
H. Injury Leave      Page 13 

 
Section III  Insurance 
 

A. Hospitalization, Surgery and Major Medical  Page 14 
B. Prescription Plan      Page 15 
C. Dental Care      Page 15 
D. Life Insurance      Page 16 
E. Vision Plan      Page 16 

 
Section IV  Other Compensation 
 

A. Longevity Compensation     Page 17 
B. Automobile Expense Reimbursement   Page 17 
C. Non-Uniformed Clothing Allowance   Page 17 
D. Call In Pay      Page 17 
E. Tuition reimbursement     page 18 

 
Section V  Miscellaneous 
 

A. Personnel Files      Page 19 
B. Parks and Recreation Credit    Page 19 

  



3 
 

SECTION I 
WAGES AND PAY PLAN 

 
 
A.  Non-Union Employee Pay Plan 
 

The following pay schedule is to be effective DECEMBER 26, 2018 and the table below reflects a 2% 
increase for each step. Step increases shall take effect the first full pay period following the employee’s 
anniversary date. 
 
    PAY GRADE                  POSITION 

M1 Administrative Assistant, Police Administrative Aide, Desktop Technician, 
Clerk of Council 

M2 Airport Technician, Watershed Coordinator, Police Assistant,  
M3    Economic Development Communications Specialist  
M4 Cemetery Manager, Financial Specialist I, Arborist  
M5 GIS/CMMS Technician, Administrative Services Specialist, Right-of-

Way Inspector, Zoning Technician 
M6 Police Technician 
M7 Code Enforcement Officer I, Customer Service Liaison, Facility 

Maintenance Supervisor 
M8 Engineering Technician, Airport Operations Supervisor, Division 

Supervisor, Financial Specialist II, Executive Assistant, Code 
Enforcement Officer II, Golf Course Superintendent, Project Manager I, 
Collections Manager, Construction Inspector 

M9 Assistant City Attorney/Prosecutor, Building Inspector I  
M10 Development Planner 
M11    No Current Position  
M12 GIS Coordinator, Project Manager II, Airport Manager, Construction 

Inspection Manager, IT Project Coordinator, Budget Analyst,  
M13 Building Inspector II  
M14 Information Systems & Network Administrator, Human Resource 

Manager, Assistant Prosecutor, Database Analyst  
M15 Project Engineer I, Assistant Water Manager, Assistant Wastewater 

Manager, Parks Superintendent  
M16    No current position 
M17    Project and Maintenance Manager, Public Works   

     Superintendent, Accountant, Zoning Administrator, Water  
     Manager, Wastewater Manager, Community Affairs Coordinator,  

Project Engineer II, Income Tax Administrator 
M18 Project Engineer III 
M19    Deputy City Engineer 
M20    No current position  

 
 
 
 
  



4 
 

Pay Grade Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 

M1 18.86 19.59 20.28 21.21 22.04 

M2 19.40 20.55 20.98 21.86 22.71 

M3 20.37 21.19 22.04 22.93 23.84 

M4 21.19 22.03 22.92 23.87 24.80 

M5 22.28 23.25 24.63 25.55 26.32 

M6 23.18 24.25 25.59 26.56 27.38 

M7 24.08 25.23 26.61 27.60 28.48 

M8 25.42 26.50 27.56 28.73 29.94 

M9 26.46 27.54 28.67 29.88 31.14 

M10 27.51 28.65 29.85 31.10 32.41 

M11 28.61 29.75 31.08 32.31 33.65 

M12 29.79 30.98 32.28 33.60 35.03 

M13 30.96 32.21 33.58 34.97 36.44 

M14 32.16 33.52 34.92 36.37 37.90 

M15 33.44 34.87 36.33 37.83 39.37 

M16 34.82 36.25 37.77 39.33 40.94 

M17 36.21 37.68 39.33 40.89 42.62 

M18 37.62 39.19 40.89 42.56 44.33 

M19 39.16 40.78 42.53 44.24 46.07 

M20 40.71 42.37 44.24 46.02 47.92 
 

 
 
 
 



5 
 

B. Department Head Pay Plan 
 
The following pay schedule for the positions below is to be effective DECEMBER 26, 2018 and reflects 
a 2.5% increase to each range.  
 

DH III 
  

Range 

 
Dean Stelzer Finance Director $105,386.40 to $147,540.96 

 
Darren Shulman City Attorney 

  
 

 

Bruce 
Pijanowski Police Chief 

  
 

 
John Donahue Fire Chief 

  
 

DH II 
  

$87,822.00 to $122,950.08 

 
Bill Ferrigno Public Works Director/City Engineer 

  
 

 
David Efland Planning Director 

  
 

  
Chief Information Officer 

  
 

  
Assistant Fire Chief 

  
 

 
Brad Stanton Public Utilities Director 

  
 

 
Jackie Walker Assistant City Manager 

  
 

DH I  
  

$73,185.00 to  $102,459.00 

 
Jerry Warner Chief Building Official 

  
 

 
Sean Hughes Economic Development Director 

  
 

 
Ted Miller Parks & Recreation Director 

  
 

 
Melissa Schiffel City Prosecutor 

  
 

 
 

C. Safety Forces Pay Plan 
 
The following pay schedule is to be effective DECEMBER 26, 2018. The table below reflects a 2% 
increase for each step.  Step increases shall take effect the first full pay period following the employee’s 
anniversary date. 
 

Pay Grade STEP 1 STEP 2 STEP 3 

  Hourly Annual Hourly Annual Hourly Annual 

SF1 48.78 $101,454.91  50.60 $105,252.58  52.44 $109,071.46  

       PAY GRADE 
 

POSITION 
    SF1 

 
Police Captain 

     
1.  Maximum Vacation Accrual 

If an employee enters into the Management Pay Plan with more than the maximum 
accrual of vacation hours allowed, the following will occur:  1.the employee may 
request a pay out to take the current level below the maximum allowed or 2. the current 
accrual will be “frozen” as a maximum cap for the calendar year.  The last pay of each 
year will be the next annual cap if the accrual is lower than the previous cap.  This will 
continue to occur until the employee reaches the maximum management accrual rate. 
 



6 
 

2. Initial Compensatory Time 
Prior to entering the Management Pay Plan all compensatory time will be paid out 
according to the provision in the respective bargaining contract and the employee 
compensation time will be zero (0).   

 
3. Clothing Maintenance Allowance 

The positions of Police Chief and Police Captain shall receive an annual clothing 
maintenance allowance of three hundred and forty dollars ($340) in January of each 
year. 

 
4. Uniforms Allowance 

The Management Pay Plan positions in the Police and Fire Departments will receive 
replacement uniform items when determined by the Chief that replacement is necessary. 
 

Pay Grade STEP 1 STEP 2 STEP 3 

  Hourly Annual Hourly Annual Hourly Annual 

SF2 per contract per contract per contract 

       PAY GRADE 
 

POSITION 
    SF2 

 
Fire Captain 

     
1. Wages and associated benefits for the 40-hour/week Management Fire Captain are identical 

to those provided to equivalent bargaining unit position.  Position is considered overtime 
eligible.  Additionally, incumbent will receive 5% out-of-class pay (BASED ON BASE 
WAGE RATE) when serving as Acting Chief.   

 
D. Overtime Pay and Compensatory Time:   Non-Exempt Employees  

  
For employees who are entitled to overtime pay or compensatory time off under the provisions of the 
Fair Labor Standard Act they shall be entitled to overtime pay or compensatory time as described below: 

 
1. Employees shall be compensated at straight-time rates for all hours in active pay status, except that 

all hours in paid status in excess of forty (40) hours in any workweek shall be compensated for at a 
rate of time and one-half.  Payment in cash shall be made for any overtime due at the time of 
separation from City service. 

 
2. In lieu of cash payment, the employee may request to be compensated for overtime by compensatory 

time off in accordance with the law.  Such compensatory time off shall be equal to one and one-half 
(1.5) hours for each hour of overtime compensation to which the employee is entitled.  All requests 
for use of compensatory time are subject to approval of the department head.  Compensatory time 
shall be taken at a time mutually agreeable to the supervisor and the employee. 

 
3. Employees can accumulate up to eighty (80) hours of compensatory time.  When an employee has 

eighty (80) hours of accumulated compensatory time, all further overtime will be paid in cash. 
 
4. At no time shall compensatory time be converted to any other form of leave or compensation; except 

when an employee separates from City service.  Upon termination of employment, a non-exempt 
employee shall be paid for unused compensatory time provided that the time was earned after April 
14, 1986 at a rate of compensation not less than: 



7 
 

a.) The average regular rate (hourly rate) received by such employee during the last 3   years of 
the employee's employment, or 

b.) The final regular rate (hourly rate) received by such employee, whichever is higher. 

5. Compensatory time shall be submitted on the regular payroll sheet detailing the time earned and 
taken. 
 
 

E. Compensatory Time:  Exempt Employees  
 
 Employees exempt under the Fair Labor Standard Act shall not be entitled to overtime pay but  
 shall be entitled to compensatory time as described below: 

 
1. No existing compensatory time balances will be carried over from an outside position or when the 

employ transfers into the Management Pay Plan. 
 

  2.   Compensatory time shall be earned for approved work that exceeds eight (8) hours per day and such 
employees may receive said compensatory time at the rate of one (1) hour for each hour worked in 
excess of eight (8) hours per day. 

 
3. The maximum accrual of compensatory time shall be eighty (80) hours. 

 
4. Compensatory time must be used in minimum increments of one (1) hour and maximum increments 

of twenty four (24) hours per pay period.  
 

5. At no time shall compensatory time be converted to any other form of leave or compensation.  Upon 
termination of employment, an exempt employee is not entitled to payment for unused compensatory 
time.   

 
6. Compensatory time shall be submitted on the regular payroll sheet detailing the time earned and 

taken. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8 
 

SECTION II 
ACCRUED TIME AND VARIOUS LEAVES 

 
A. Vacation  

 
1. The vacation year for employees shall end at the close of business on the last pay period that 

ends in the month of December. 
 

2.  Each full-time employee shall accrue vacation leave by pay period at the annual rate of work 
hours based on years of full time total service which is established in the schedules contained in 
Section 3 of this article.  Years of total full time service is defined to be the total of all periods of 
employment for the City of Delaware.  Any period of interruption of service due to resignation, 
layoff, disciplinary suspension, or discharge for cause, will not be included in the computation of 
total service.  Time not in paid status, excepting military leave, shall also be excluded in 
computing total service.  In computing years of service, the higher rate of accrual will be on the 
first day of the first pay period in which a year of service is completed. 

 
3.   The following vacation accrual schedules are established: 

 
 
 
Years of Total Service 

 
Vacation 
Hrs/Year 

 
Vacation 
Hrs/Pay 

 
   Start through 5 years 

 
80.6 

 
3.1 

 
   6 through 10 years 

 
119.6 

 
4.6 

 
   11 through 15 years 

 
161.2 

 
6.2 

 
   16 plus years 

 
200.2 

 
7.7 

 
4. Any vacation balance in excess of the maximum accrual shall become void as of the close of 

business on the last day of the last pay period that ends in the month of December. 
 

 
 
Years of Total Service 

 
Maximum Accrual 
of Vacation Hours 

 
   Start through 5 years 

 
241.8  

 
   6 through 10 years 

 
358.8  

 
   11 through 15 years 

 
483.6  

 
   16 plus years 

 
600.6  

 
5. Eligibility 

 
a. To be eligible for biweekly (pay period) vacation accumulation, an employee must be in paid 

status for a minimum of 72 hours within that pay period; except that when an employee is 



9 
 

required to report for work and does so report and is denied work because of circumstances 
beyond their control, absence from work for the balance of that day shall not be construed as 
unpaid work status. 
 

b. An employee in full-time status who is to be separated from the City service through discharge, 
resignation, retirement or layoff, and who has unused vacation leave to their credit, shall be 
paid in a lump sum for such unused vacation leave in lieu of granting a  vacation leave after his 
last day of active service with the City.  Such payment shall be  paid at the employee's hourly 
rate of pay at time of separation. 

 
c. When a member dies while in paid status in the City service, any unused vacation leave to their 

credit shall be paid in a lump sum to the surviving spouse, or such other person the employee 
may have designated in writing. 

 
d. Requests for vacation are to be submitted and approved, in advance of the intended use, by 

employee’s supervisor or department head.   
 

e. To be eligible to transfer years of service for determination of vacation benefits to the City of 
Delaware from prior employment inside the State of Ohio: 

1) Employees will only be eligible to transfer years of service from a public agency  
as defined by State law. 

2) The amount of years of service that can be transferred is unlimited. 
3) Prior employment must be in full-time status. 

 
f. To be eligible to transfer years of service for determination of vacation benefits to the  City of 

Delaware from prior employment outside the State of Ohio: 
1) Employees will only be eligible to transfer years of service from their  

immediate previous employer. 
2) Said previous employer must be a public agency. 
3) Employment with the City of Delaware must take place within twelve months of  

termination from their immediate previous employer. 
4) The maximum amount of years of service that can be transferred is five (5)  

years. 
5) Present employees are not eligible. 
6) Prior employment must be in full-time status. 

 
g. An employee may elect to trade three (3) weeks of vacation time, or the equivalent of vacation 

time earned in one year, whichever is greater, for equivalent pay during the calendar year.  
Conversion of vacation time may occur in FOR PAY PERIODS ENDING IN THE MONTHS 
OF  January, June, or December of each year.  FOR 2019, THESE DATES ARE AS 
FOLLOWS: 

Pay Period Ending Pay Date 
January 8, 2019 January 15, 2019 
January 22, 2019 January 29, 2019 
June 11, 2019 June 18, 2019 
June 25, 2019 July 2, 2019 
December 10, 2019 December 17, 2019 
December 24, 2019 December 31, 2019 

 



10 
 

 An employee must inform the Department Head prior to August 1 of the year preceding the 
calendar year in which he intends to make the trade and must maintain at least forty (40) hour of 
vacation time in the employee’s account after said trade takes place.  EXCEPTIONS MAY BE 
GRANTED BY THE AUTHORITY OF THE CITY MANAGER. 

                                   
 
B. Sick Leave 

 
1.   Each City employee shall be entitled to sick leave with pay of four and six-tenths (4.6) hours for 

each completed eighty (80) hours of service.  An employee may use sick leave, upon approval of 
his or her Department Head, for absence due to personal illness, pregnancy, injury, exposure to 
contagious disease which could be communicated to other employees, and for illness or injury of 
the employee's spouse, dependent children, step-children or parent.   It is the option of a 
supervisor, with cause, to require return to work documentation from the employee.    

 
2.   If an employee used 0 hours of sick leave in any one calendar year, that employee shall be 

credited with an additional three (3) vacation days the following year.  If an employee uses 
between one (1) and eight (8) hours of sick leave in any one calendar year that employee shall be 
credited with an additional two (2) vacation days the following year.  If an employee uses 
between nine (9) and sixteen (16) hours of sick leave in any one calendar year that member shall 
be credited with one (1) additional vacation  day the following year.  To be eligible for this 
incentive, an employee must be active for the first pay period of the calendar year through the 
last pay period of the calendar year.  At the employee's option, any additional vacation days 
earned can be converted to pay FOR PAY PERIODS ENDING in the months of January, June, 
or December of the year the additional vacation is earned.  FOR 2019, THESE DATES ARE 
AS FOLLOWS: 

Pay Period Ending Pay Date 
January 8, 2019 January 15, 2019 
January 22, 2019 January 29, 2019 
June 11, 2019 June 18, 2019 
June 25, 2019 July 2, 2019 
December 10, 2019 December 17, 2019 
December 24, 2019 December 31, 2019 

 
 

3.   To be eligible to transfer sick leave to the City of Delaware from prior employment inside the 
State of Ohio: 

 
 a. Employees will only be eligible to transfer sick leave from a public agency as  
  defined by the State of Ohio.                                   
 

 b. Employment with the City of Delaware must take place within ten (10)  
  years of termination from their previous employer.                         

 
 c. The maximum amount of sick leave hours that can be transferred is 

 unlimited as long as it is accrued at a rate of no greater than 15 days per  
  year.                  
                                                

4. To be eligible to transfer sick leave to the City of Delaware from prior employment outside the 



11 
 

State of Ohio: 
 

 a. Employees will only be eligible to transfer sick leave from their  immediate  
  previous employer.                                              

 
  b. Said previous employer must be a public agency.                           

 
                          c. Employment with the City of Delaware must take place within twelve (12) 

months of termination from their immediate previous employer 
d. The maximum amount of sick leave hours that can be transferred is six hundred 

(600).                                                            

                                       e. Any sick leave time so transferred shall have been accumulated at the rate of 
one and one-fourth days per month of employment.                  

 
  f. Present employees are not eligible.                                       

 
 

5.  Any City employee who has accumulated at least 100 days of sick leave credit may convert any 
excess thereof up to fifteen (15) days per year of sick leave to vacation leave on the basis two (2) 
sick leave days for one (1) day vacation leave.  Such annual conversion, if made, shall occur in 
December for the year of conversion. 

 
6.   Any employee separated from City service for other than just cause shall be paid for all 

accumulated and unused sick leave on the basis of one (1) hour of pay for every two (2) hours of 
unused sick leave.  Total sick leave pay out cannot exceed sixteen (16) weeks pay. 

 
7.  For Employees Hired After November 1, 2013 

 
Each member hired by the City of Delaware after November 1, 2013 may transfer accrued sick 
leave hours from previous employment with any public agency but such sick leave hours will 
not be eligible for conversion or payment upon separation pursuant to section 5.  In addition, 
sick leave usage by members who transfer in sick leave hours will first be charged to sick leave 
hours accumulated while employed by the City of Delaware.  Members will only be eligible to 
utilize hours transferred in from prior public employment when they have no balance of sick 
leave available from sick leave accrued while employed by the City of Delaware. 
 

 
C. Holiday and Personal Days 

 
1. The following are designated as paid holidays for covered employees: 

 
 New Year's Day, January 1  Little Brown Jug Day, ½ day1 
 Martin Luther King Day   Thanksgiving Day 
 Memorial Day    Day after Thanksgiving Day 
 Independence Day, July 4  Day before Christmas, ½ day 
 Labor Day    Christmas Day, December 25 

 

                                                           
1 In the event that an office remains open on a designated paid holiday all affected staff may take the corresponding time 
off for that holiday on another date, upon prior approval of their supervisor and/or department director. 



12 
 

2.   If one of the holidays set forth above occurs while an employee is on vacation leave, such day shall 
not be charged against his/her vacation leave. 

 
3.  In the event that the Federal Government designates a specific day for any of the aforesaid 

holidays, then such holiday shall be observed by the City in accordance with such federal 
designation.  When any such holiday falls on a Saturday it shall be observed on the Friday 
immediately preceding, and when any such holiday falls on a Sunday, it shall be observed on the 
Monday immediately following, provided that the employee works their last regularly scheduled 
work day preceding and following the holiday. 

 
4. For each of the holidays specified in Section 1 of this article on which a FLSA non-exempt 

employee works, they shall be entitled to holiday compensation equal to double the employee's 
regular rate of pay, except that the employee shall be entitled to holiday compensation at two and 
one-half times the employee's regular rate of pay if they work on any of the following holidays:  
New Year's Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas 
Day.  Only eight (8) hours per day will be used when computing the holiday rate.  Compensation 
for holidays may be in the form of cash or compensatory time off. 

 
     5.   Employees shall be credited with 32 hours of personal leave a year, except for new hires who shall 
           receive a prorated amount based on hire date.  Use of holiday compensatory time or personal days    
             shall be at the employee’s discretion with the approval of the employee’s supervisor or department    
            head.   

 
6. All employees will be permitted to accumulate three (3) years' worth of holiday compensatory 

time and personal leave.  Once an employee accumulates the maximum allowable number of 
personal leave/holiday compensatory time then future personal leave/holiday compensatory time 
will be compensated for in cash, at the time they are earned.  An employee may elect to cash in up 
to one year's worth of personal leave each year (32 hours) FOR PAY PERIODS ENDING in the 
months of January, June, or December each year.  An employee must inform his or her 
Department Head prior to August 1 of the year preceding the calendar year in which they intend to 
make the trade.  FOR 2019, THESE DATES ARE AS FOLLOWS: 

Pay Period Ending Pay Date 
January 8, 2019 January 15, 2019 
January 22, 2019 January 29, 2019 
June 11, 2019 June 18, 2019 
June 25, 2019 July 2, 2019 
December 10, 2019 December 17, 2019 
December 24, 2019 December 31, 2019 

 
 

D. Funeral Leave 
 

Each covered employee shall be entitled to funeral leave with pay according to the                        
following schedule: 

 
 
     
 
   Leave for Death of: 

 
Days/Hours of Leave 

 
Local Funeral 

 
Other Funeral 



13 
 

 
Immediate Family Member 

 
1 - 3 Days 

 
1 - 5 Days 

Other Relative 
May Use Up To One 

Scheduled Work Day of 
Accrued Leave 

May Use Between 1-3 
Scheduled Work Days of 

Accrued Leave 

 
• One work day/shift is automatic for the day of the funeral, but additional 

time up to the maximum shall be given only with approval of the 
Department Head.          

                           
• All leave time with approval of the Department Head.                

  
1. For the purposes of this section, "Immediate Family Member" means spouse, child, brother, 

sister, parents, step-child, step-brother, step-sister and step-parents, grandparents, grandchildren, 
sister-in-law, brother-in-law and parents-in-law. 

 
2. For the purposes of the article, "Local Funeral" means a funeral in the City of Delaware, or 

within fifty (50) miles thereof. 
 

 
E. Special Leave  

  
In addition to other leaves authorized herein, the City Manager may authorize a special leave of 
absence, with or without pay, for purposes beneficial to the employee and/ or the City.  

 
For exempt employees who are absent, if the absence cannot be covered or paid through appropriate 
leave time, said employees shall be subject to a reduction in pay, unless the absence is less than one 
workday.  

 
 
 

 
F.  Jury Duty Leave 
  
 An employee, while serving on a jury in any court of record in Delaware County, or any adjoining 

county, will be paid his regular salary for each of his workdays during the period of time so served.  
Time so served shall be deemed active and continuous service for all purposes.  All jury fees received 
from the court of record shall be assigned to the City of Delaware. 

   
 When an employee has been released from Jury Duty they shall report back to work if more than two 

(2) hours are left in the workday 
 

G. Court Leave  
 
Time off with pay shall be allowed employees who are subpoenaed to attend any court of record in 
Delaware County, Delaware, Ohio, or any adjoining county, as a witness in civil matters, as they 
pertain to City matters.  All witness fees shall be assigned to the City of Delaware.   
 

       H. Injury Leave 
 



14 
 

All regular full-time City employees shall be entitled to injury leave with pay, less any Worker's 
Compensation weekly salary benefits which he/she may be awarded by the Ohio Industrial 
Commission (OIC), for a period not to exceed 30 consecutive working days for employees working a 
40-hour workweek for each injury incurred in the performance of employment duties with the City, 
provided that the following procedures are followed: 

 
1. In all cases of personal injury to any regular full-time City employee as a result of the 

performance of employment duties, the employee shall complete an accident/injury 
investigation form and in conjunction with his/her Department Head shall report such 
injury to the Department of Administrative Services immediately and ensure that a claim is 
filed with the BWC. 

 
2. In the event that time off from work is required by the injured employee, they will be 

granted injury leave from the first day of injury, if the proper documentation is submitted to 
the City of Delaware.  This documentation will include, but not be limited to, a statement 
from the employee's physician, an Agreement covering Compensation Reimbursement, any 
necessary BWC forms and other documents as may be required by the City.  In the event 
that the BWC determines that the injury is NOT employment related, any time the 
employee is, or has been, absent from work shall be deducted first from any accrued sick 
leave, then accrued vacation, or accrued compensatory time off, other than compensatory 
time for overtime worked.   

 
3. During the period of time an injured employee is being paid under this policy, all normal 

benefits given to regular full-time City employees shall remain in force with no deductions 
to earned sick leave and/or vacation time. 

 
4. In all cases where more than 30 consecutive working days are needed for  injury leave for 

employees working a 40-hour workweek, the City Manager may extend such leave, if such 
necessity is determined to his/her satisfaction.  Each employee requesting such an extension 
under this policy may be required to furnish a current affidavit from a licensed physician 
setting forth the need for the extension. 

SECTION III - INSURANCE 
 

A. Hospitalization, Surgical and Major Medical 
  
The City will continue to provide comprehensive hospitalization, surgical and major medical coverage 
for all full-time members and their dependents.  Beginning January 1, 1999, or at some date thereafter, 
the City may implement a Preferred Provider Organization (PPO).  The Plan if implemented will provide 
for the following deductibles and co-payments as follows: 

 
 
 
  

 
 NETWORKS 
 PROVIDERS 

 
 NON-NETWORK 
 PROVIDERS 

 
Annual Deductible  Single 

 Family 

 
None 
None 

 
$ 500.00 
$1000.00  

 
Office Visit Co-pay 

 
$10.00 

 
N/A 



15 
 

 
 
ER Visit  
 
Co-Pay 

   
$50.00 unless admitted into the 
hospital, otherwise co-insurance 
will apply in excess of the 
deductible 

  
N/A 

Co-insurance  
 
Single 
 
Family 

 
 
90/10% of first $1,000 
80/20% of next $3,000 
90/10% of first $2,000 
80/20% of next $5,000 

 
 
50/50% of first $5,000 
 
50/50% of first $10,000 

 

1. Contributions will be deducted from the member's gross income prior to taxes, subject to 
compliance with all applicable tax regulations.   

 
2. Effective January 1, 2013 employees will contribute to the cost of the health benefit plan in 

an amount equal to 15% of the established monthly COBRA rate utilized by the City.  
Annual changes to the calculated COBRA rate will be applied to the monthly employee 
contributions on the first full pay-period in April of each year.  Contributions will be 
deducted from all members in a paid status based on twelve (12) months times the monthly 
rate, divided by the number of pay periods per year.  An example would be $56.95/mo. x 12 
= $683.40, $683.40/26 pay periods = $26.28 per pay period.  In the event federal tax 
regulations are changed so that medical benefit plans are no longer tax exempt, the City will 
not be responsible to pick up the member's tax burden.   
 

       The City will permit employees who have alternate health plan options through a  
       spouse to opt out of the City plan in return for a payment of $100.00 per month.   
       Families who have both spouses employed full time by the City of Delaware will  
       not be eligible to opt out of the plan.  One spouse will carry the cost of the plan  
       minus the opt out payment.  The employee will provide proof that they do in fact  
        have other coverage before the City will drop that employee's current coverage.   
       The City will continue to provide dental coverage if it is not provided under the  
       employee's spouse's insurance.  A member may elect to return to coverage under  
       the City's insurance plan by notifying the City in writing of any substantial   
       changes in their qualifying family circumstances.  The member must give thirty  
       (30) days’ notice of his or her election to return to the City's plan, except in the  
       case of an emergency, such as sudden loss of spouse's coverage, divorce or other          
       change in family status.  The plan will comply with Internal Revenue Code   
       Section 125 which governs this matter.   

 
3. Employees who opt out of the health insurance program will be compensated as follows: 

 
No Coverage     $100 per month 
Maintain Dental Only    $  65 per month 

* An employee may not elect to have medical coverage only. 
 

4. Payments will begin on the first pay period of the month following 30 days’ notice of an 
employee’s desire to drop coverage.  A form will be provided which will contain all 



16 
 

information necessary to discontinue coverage under the plan.  The form must be signed and 
returned to the Department of Administrative Services.  Until such time that an employee is 
effectively dropped from City coverage, they will be subject to any payroll contributions. 

 
5. All payments made in lieu of insurance coverage will be included as other pay on 

employee's paycheck.  This income will not be included in income subject to OPERS 
contributions but will be subject to all applicable taxes. 
 
 

B. Prescription Plan 
 
The City will provide a prescription card plan for members and their dependents.  
 
The retail benefits will be the following with the City paying the higher amount and the employee paying 
the lesser amount of prescription coinsurance:  

• 80/20% for generic drugs  
• 50/50% name brand drugs with a $25 co-pay for each disbursement 

 
The mail order benefits will be the following:  

• 90/10% for generic drugs and  
• 75/25% for name brand drugs with no $25 co-pay.   

 
The maximum expense an employee will pay for coinsurance is $250 annually for single coverage and 
$500 for family annually for prescription benefits, however, the $25 co-pay for retail name brand drugs 
will not count towards the calculation of the $250 or the $500 coinsurance maximum and will always 
apply even after an employee reaches the coinsurance maximum expenditure.  

 
C. Dental Care Plan 

 
The City will maintain the current dental coverage for all members.  Please refer to the Plan Document 
for specific covered services 
 
 

D. Life Insurance 
 
The City will provide the following amount of life insurance: 

Department Heads = $50,000 
Assistant Fire and Police Chiefs = $50,000 
Pay Grades M11 through M20 = $40,000 
Police Captain and Fire Captain = $40,000 
Pay Grades M 1 through M10 = $30,000 

 
 

E. Vision Plan 
 
The City will provide a vision plan for members and their dependents covered by this Summary of 
Benefits.  The City will contribute $6.00 per month on behalf of the employee.  The employee will be 
responsible for the balance of the monthly cost of the coverage selected. 

 
 



17 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SECTION IV 
OTHER COMPENSATION 

 
A. Longevity Compensation 
 

Employees shall receive, in addition to other pay called for herein, Longevity Compensation based on 
completed years of service according to the following table: 

 

After five (5) years of continuous service $550.00 / year 
After ten (10) years of continuous service $750.00 / year 
After fifteen (15) years of continuous service $950.00 / year 
After twenty (20) years of continuous service $1150.00 / year 

 

1. Longevity compensation shall be paid, in accordance with the above schedule, in two (2) separate 
lump sum payments during the first pay periods in June and December of each year. 

2. Upon termination of service for any reason, employees who are eligible for longevity pay under this 
section (or in the event of death, the surviving spouse or estate) will be paid, as part of their terminal 
pay, the final partial year of longevity compensation, prorated to the number of months completed 
during said partial year since the employee’s last payment date. 

3. For the purpose of this section, continuous years of service shall include approved military leave. 



18 
 

   
B. Automobile Expense Reimbursement  

 
Employees shall receive reimbursement for business use of their personal vehicle.           
Reimbursement will be in accordance with Internal Revenue Service (IRS) regulations for not-taxable 
reimbursements and shall be at the IRS per mile reimbursement rate in effect when the business use 
miles were incurred.  Department Heads as department heads employed by the City prior to January 1, 
1999 who had received a monthly automobile allowance will only be reimbursed for business use of 
their personal vehicle for travel outside the City limits.  

 
C. Non-Uniformed Clothing Allowance 

 
All employees covered under this pay plan in Pay Grades M1 through M9 who are not provided with a 
uniform shall receive an annual clothing allowance of $150.00.  Such allowance shall be utilized to 
purchase necessary work related items of clothing such as, but not limited to:  steel toed boots, coats, 
rain gear, rubber boots, gloves etc.  All purchases of clothing shall be the responsibility of the 
employee.  Upon hire the clothing allowance will be prorated based on the full months of service for 
that year. 

 
D. Call In Pay  

 
Both exempt and nonexempt employees shall be eligible for "on call" compensation for weekly periods 
when assigned the responsibility of directing Parks, Public Works, or Utility personnel in response to 
service requests during non-scheduled work periods.  Employees assigned to this "on call" status shall 
serve in this posture for weekly time periods as authorized by the respective Department Head.  Said 
employees shall be responsible for responding to after hour service requests.  Employees assigned to an 
"on call" status shall be compensated at a weekly rate of between $25.00 and $50.00 as determined by 
the City Manager.  On call compensation shall be paid in addition to regular and overtime wages earned 
during the pay period.  On call assignments will be posted in June and December of each year for the 
following six-month period.  Changes to the schedule must be made in advance with approval of the 
Department Head. 

E. Tuition Reimbursement  
 
       All full-time employees with one or more years of continuous active service shall be eligible 

for a reimbursement of instructional fees for undergraduate or graduate courses towards a 
degree or certification, pre-approved by the city and voluntarily undertaken by the employee.  
The tuition reimbursement program shall be subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. All courses must be taken during other than scheduled working hours.  Any situation 

which, in the discretion of the department head, would require an employee’s 
presence on the job shall take complete and final precedence over any time 
scheduled for courses.  All courses are subject to approval by the department head 
and/or city manager.  There must be a direct correlation between the employee’s 
duties and responsibilities and the courses taken or the degree program pursued.  The 
city manager, or his designee, has the sole and final discretion to approve or 
disapprove tuition reimbursement requests. 

2. Any financial assistance from any government or private agency available to the 
employee, whether applied for and regardless of when such assistance may have 
been received, shall be deducted in the entire amount from the tuition reimbursement 



19 
 

the employee is eligible for under this section.  If an employee’s tuition is fully 
covered by another governmental or private agency, then the employee is not 
entitled to any payment from the city. 

3. Employees seeking authorization of a tuition reimbursement must first submit to the 
department head for review, prior to September 30 of the year preceding when the 
classes are to be taken, all necessary information pertaining to the proposed course 
degree to be pursued, the educational institution and the employee’s best estimate of 
course costs, dates and times.  EMPLOYEES WILL BE ELIGIBLE FOR 
TUITION REIMBURSEMENT FOR PROPERLY APPROVED AND 
COMPLETED COURSEWORK UP TO $3,500 FOR CALENDAR YEAR 
(JANUARY 1 TO DECEMBER 31).  Pre-approval is subject to available 
appropriations.  THE EMPLOYEE WILL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY 
TUITION IN EXCESS OF THE ABOVE MENTIONED AMOUNTS.  AN 
APPLICATION FOR TUITION REIMBURSEMENT MUST BE 
COMPLETED BY THE EMPLOYEE PRIOR TO ENROLLING IN THE 
CLASS WORK FOR WHICH REIMBURSEMENT IS REQUESTED. 

4. Courses must be taken at accredited colleges, universities, technical and business 
institutes or at their established extension centers and these must be first approved by 
the city.  Seminars, conferences and workshops are not included. 

5. Reimbursement for tuition will be made when the employee satisfactorily completes 
(attains at least a grade of “C” or its equivalent for undergraduate work and a grade 
of at least “B” or its equivalent for graduate work) a course and presents an official 
certificate or its equivalent and a receipt of payment or a copy of the unpaid bill from 
the institution confirming completion of the approved course.   

6. No reimbursement will be granted for books, paper, supplies of whatever nature, 
transportation, meals, or any other expense connected with any course, except the 
cost of tuition fees outlined above. 

7. Any employee participating in the tuition reimbursement program who resigns 
(except resignation due to disability), retires (except retirement due to disability), or 
is discharged for cause must repay the tuition reimbursement paid by the city for 
courses taken less than two years prior to the date of termination or discharge.  If 
necessary, this amount will be deducted from the employee’s terminal leave pay or 
final paycheck. 

  



20 
 

SECTION V 
MISCELLANEOUS 

 
A. Personnel Files 

  
The official personnel files of all employees shall be maintained in the Department of Administrative 
Services (DAS).  All employee personnel records shall include but not limited to, applications, 
performance evaluations, promotions, acts of reward and recognition, disciplinary actions and any 
other pertinent information pertaining to the job performance of the individual employee. Copies therein 
shall be available to the employee.   

  
DAS shall be responsible for the care and maintenance of all personnel files and records.  Department 
heads shall be responsible for promptly forwarding all pertinent personnel information and 
documentation to DAS.  Employees may, during normal office hours, review their official personnel 
files. 

 
B. Parks and Recreation Credit 

 
 The City shall provide each employee with a credit to be applied to a Jack Florance Pool  membership, 

City Golf Course membership or punch-card, or City rentals (shelters or Hilborn Room).  The amount of 
the credit shall be $60.00.  Employees shall abide by the stipulations set forth by the managing 
organization both in definition and restrictions.  This credit amount is fixed, regardless of changes in 
membership fees that may occur.  In addition, the City will provide to each member a 20% discount on 
all individual registrations for City recreation programs. 

 
 Credits may not be used to purchase memberships or to secure rentals beyond the calendar year for 

which it is issued.  Credits will not be re-issued if lost or stolen and must be surrendered at the time of 
registration/ purchase.  Credits are non-transferrable.   

 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 17     DATE: 12/10/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-113   RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING NEW SALARY RATES FOR THE MAYOR AND 
MEMBERS OF CITY COUNCIL EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2020 AND 
REPEALING ORDINANCE NO. 13-44. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The salaries for Delaware City Council members were last increased effective 
January 1, 2016 pursuant to Ordinance 13-44.  Ordinance 13-44 requires 
even numbered year, as part of the City’s budget, Council vote to adjust or 
maintain the salary of the mayor and council.  According to the 2018 MORPC 
salary survey, City of Delaware pays its council members less than average 
salary paid to City Council members in similar cities. City Council members 
are called upon to attend many meetings and devote hours of time to meet 
their responsibilities. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Salary adjustments for City Council may only be made through legislation and 
made as part of the budget process established by Ord. 13-44.  Such changes 
shall take effect the January of the next even numbered year, which complies 
with Section 15 of the Charter of the City of Delaware. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 



 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Mayor Carolyn Kay Riggle 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval.   
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 18-113 
 

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING NEW SALARY RATES 
FOR THE MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF CITY COUNCIL 
EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2020 AND REPEALING 
ORDINANCE NO. 13-44. 

 
 WHEREAS, the salaries for City Council members were last increased 
effective January 1, 2016  pursuant to Ordinance 13-44; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Ordinance 13-44 requires even numbered year, as part of the 
City’s budget, Council vote to adjust or maintain the salary of the mayor and 
council; and 
 

WHEREAS, according to the 2018 MORPC salary survey, City of 
Delaware pays its council members less than average salary paid to City 
Council members in similar cities; and 

 
WHEREAS, City Council members are called upon to attend many 

meetings and devote hours of time to meet their responsibilities; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Salary adjustments made as part of the budget process 
established in Ord. 13-44 shall take effect the January of the next even 
numbered year, which complies with Section 15 of the Charter of the City of 
Delaware. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That effective January 1, 2020 the salary of the Mayor shall 
be eleven thousand five hundred dollars ($11,500) per year and the salary for 
each member of City Council, except the Mayor, shall be seven thousand two 
hundred dollars ($10,000) per year. 
 
 SECTION 2. That the salary of Mayor and the salary of each member of 
City Council shall continue to be paid in biweekly installments equal to one 
twenty sixth of their annual salary as established. 
 
 SECTION 3.  That Ordinance No. 13-44 is hereby repealed effective 
January 1, 2020. 
 
 SECTION 4.  Each even numbered year, as part of the City’s budget, 
Council shall vote to adjust or maintain the salary of the mayor and council.  
Salary adjustments made as part of this budget process shall take effect the 
January of the next even numbered year. 



SECTION 5.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 
 

 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 18    DATE: 12/10/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-115   RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING:  NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN REQUEST BY 
PULTE HOMES FOR HEATHERTON PHASE 8 CONSISTING OF 42 SINGLE 
FAMILY LOTS ON APPROXIMATELY 12.8 ACRES ZONED R-3 PRD (ONE-
FAMILY RESIDENTIAL WITH A PLANNED RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) AND 
LOCATED ON BOULDER DRIVE, ELBRIDGE STREET, GWINNETT STREET 
AND CLYMER STREET.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached report 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1129 Procedures of the zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 7-0 on December 5, 2018. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 



David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval as submitted with the documented conditions. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-115 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL DEVELOPMENT 
PLAN REQUEST BY PULTE HOMES FOR HEATHERTON 
PHASE 8 CONSISTING OF 42 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS ON 
APPROXIMATELY 12.8 ACRES ZONED R-3 PRD (ONE-
FAMILY RESIDENTIAL WITH A PLANNED RESIDENTIAL 
DISTRICT) AND LOCATED ON BOULDER DRIVE, 
ELBRIDGE STREET, GWINNETT STREET AND CLYMER 
STREET. 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of December 5, 2018 
recommended approval of a Final Development Plan request by Pulte Homes for 
Heatherton Phase 8 consisting of 42 single family lots on approximately 12.8 acres 
zoned R-3 PRD (One-Family Residential with a Planned Residential District) and 
located on Boulder Drive, Elbridge Street, Gwinnet Street and Clymer Street (PC 
2018-2933). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Final Development Plan request by Pulte Homes for 
Heatherton Phase 8 consisting of 42 single family lots on approximately 12.8 acres 
zoned R-3 PRD (One-Family Residential with a Planned Residential District) and 
located on Boulder Drive, Elbridge Street, Gwinnet Street and Clymer Street, is 
hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted with the following conditions that: 

1. The Applicant needs to obtain final engineering approvals, including any 
stormwater and utility issues that need to be worked out through the 
Engineering and Utilities Departments. All comments regarding the 
layout and details of the project are preliminary and subject to 
modification or change based on the final technical review by the 
Engineering Department.  

2. A public sidewalk shall be required along all public streets. 
3. A bike path shall be constructed on the south side of Boulder Drive by 

the developer but shall be maintained by the City. 
4. The houses shall achieve compliance the minimum Residential Design 

Standards Criteria and Performance Standards of Section 1171.08 of the 
Planning and Zoning Code.  

5. The minimum houses sizes shall be 1,500 square feet for a ranch style 
and 1,800 square feet for a two story structure both for a 3 bedroom unit 
with any additional bedroom adding 200 square feet to the totals per our 
base code for each phase and section. 



6. A street tree plan shall be submitted, reviewed and approved by the 
Shade Tree Commission for Phase 8. 

7. A lighting plan that achieves compliance with the zoning code shall be 
submitted, reviewed and approved by the Chief Building Official for each 
Phase and Section. 
 

SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  19    DATE: 12/10/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-116   RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING:  NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL SUBDIVISION PLAT REQUEST BY 
PULTE HOMES FOR HEATHERTON PHASE 8 CONSISTING OF 42 SINGLE 
FAMILY LOTS ON APPROXIMATELY 12.8 ACRES ZONED R-3 PRD (ONE-
FAMILY RESIDENTIAL WITH A PLANNED RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT) AND 
LOCATED ON BOULDER DRIVE, ELBRIDGE STREET, GWINNETT STREET 
AND CLYMER STREET.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached report 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Chapter 1111 Subdivision Regulations of the 
zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 7-0 on December 5, 2018. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 



PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval as submitted with the documented conditions. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-116 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL SUBDIVISION 
PLAT REQUEST BY PULTE HOMES FOR HEATHERTON 
PHASE 8 CONSISTING OF 42 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS ON 
APPROXIMATELY 12.8 ACRES ZONED R-3 PRD (ONE-
FAMILY RESIDENTIAL WITH A PLANNED RESIDENTIAL 
DISTRICT) AND LOCATED ON BOULDER DRIVE, 
ELBRIDGE STREET, GWINNETT STREET AND CLYMER 
STREET. 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of December 5, 2018 
recommended approval of a Final Subdivision Plat request by Pulte Homes for 
Heatherton Phase 8 consisting of 42 single family lots on approximately 12.8 acres 
zoned R-3 PRD (One-Family Residential with a Planned Residential District) and 
located on Boulder Drive, Elbridge Street, Gwinnet Street and Clymer Street (PC 
2018-2934). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Subdivision Plat request by Pulte Homes for 
Heatherton Phase 8 consisting of 42 single family lots on approximately 12.8 acres 
zoned R-3 PRD (One-Family Residential with a Planned Residential District) and 
located on Boulder Drive, Elbridge Street, Gwinnet Street and Clymer Street, is 
hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted with the following conditions that: 

1. The Applicant needs to obtain final engineering approvals, including any 
stormwater and utility issues that need to be worked out through the 
Engineering and Utilities Departments. All comments regarding the 
layout and details of the project are preliminary and subject to 
modification or change based on the final technical review by the 
Engineering Department.  

2. A public sidewalk shall be required along all public streets. 
3. A bike path shall be constructed on the south side of Boulder Drive by 

the developer but shall be maintained by the City. 
4. The houses shall achieve compliance the minimum Residential Design 

Standards Criteria and Performance Standards of Section 1171.08 of the 
Planning and Zoning Code.  

5. The minimum houses sizes shall be 1,500 square feet for a ranch style 
and 1,800 square feet for a two story structure both for a 3 bedroom unit 
with any additional bedroom adding 200 square feet to the totals per our 
base code for each phase and section. 



6. A street tree plan shall be submitted, reviewed and approved by the 
Shade Tree Commission for Phase 8. 

7. A lighting plan that achieves compliance with the zoning code shall be 
submitted, reviewed and approved by the Chief Building Official for each 
Phase and Section. 
 

SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 

























  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  20    DATE:  12/10/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-117   RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR THE DELAWARE COUNTY FAIR BOARD APPROVING A 
COMBINED PRELIMINARY AND FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR THE 
DELAWARE COUNTY 4H BUILDING LOCATED WITHIN THE DELAWARE 
COUNTY FAIRGROUNDS ALONG THE NORTH SIDE OF PENNSYLVANIA 
AVENUE ON PROPERTY ZONED R-3 (ONE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT).  
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached report 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1129.05 Final Development Plan   
requirements of the zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 7-0 on December 5, 2018. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 



David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval as submitted with the documented conditions. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-117 
 
AN ORDINANCE FOR THE DELAWARE COUNTY FAIR 
BOARD APPROVING A COMBINED PRELIMINARY AND 
FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR THE DELAWARE 
COUNTY 4H BUILDING LOCATED WITHIN THE 
DELAWARE COUNTY FAIRGROUNDS ALONG THE 
NORTH SIDE OF PENNSYLVANIA AVENUE ON 
PROPERTY ZONED R-3 (ONE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 
DISTRICT). 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on December 5, 2018 
recommended approval of a Combined Preliminary and Final Development Plan for 
the Delaware County Fair Board for the Delaware County 4H Building located 
within the Delaware County Fairgrounds along the north side of Pennsylvania 
Avenue on property zoned R-3 (One-Family Residential District) (PC Case 2018-
2916). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Combined Preliminary and Final Development Plan 
for the Delaware County Fair Board for the Delaware County 4H Building located 
within the Delaware County Fairgrounds along the north side of Pennsylvania 
Avenue on property zoned R-3 (One-Family Residential District), is hereby 
confirmed, approved, and accepted with the following conditions that: 
 

1. The applicant needs to obtain engineering approvals, including any 
storm water and utility issues that need to be worked out through the 
Engineering and Utilities Departments.  All comments regarding the 
layout and details of the project are preliminary and subject to 
modification or change based on the final technical review by the 
Engineering Department once a complete plan set is submitted for 
review. 

2. All building appurtenances (coping, downspouts, etc.) shall be painted to 
match the adjacent building color. 

3. The Applicant shall submit all building elevations along with material 
and color samples for all building materials for staff review and approval.  

4. The applicant shall pay $10,700 to replace the trees removed or plant 
additional tress or a combination of both or account for it the planned 
rezoning per Chapter 1168 prior to certificate of occupancy approval of 
the 4H barn structure proposed herein. 

5. Any street trees damaged by construction shall be replaced. 



6. The applicant shall submit for a rezoning for the overall master plan for 
the fairgrounds which shall occur no later than June 1, 2020 to a 
specific planned development to adequately account for the unique uses, 
ensure adherence to regulations, and facilitate implementation of the 
Fairground’s master plan. The rezoning shall include provision for the 
granting of easements/right-of-way that would be for the extension of a 
sidewalk from Euclid Avenue west to the Army Reserve Property. 
Additionally, the zoning shall tie the construction of said sidewalk to 
future development projects as they may be brought forward. Future 
building/structure development plan reviews shall not be approved prior 
to completion of the master plan rezoning as described above. Permit 
requests not requiring development plan review shall continue to be 
processed on a building and engineering permit by permit basis.   

7. Per the previous agreement of August 9, 2010 between the Delaware 
County Agricultural Society and the City, the Delaware County 
Agricultural Society shall grant the City certain easements for utilities 
and for a bike path on the fairground property prior to the final 
certificate of occupancy approval of the 4H barn structure proposed 
herein.   

8. The applicant shall submit for an alley vacation and lot consolidation for 
the subject building prior to certificate of occupancy approval of the 4H 
barn structure proposed herein.   

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



































































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  21    DATE:  12/10/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-118   RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING:  NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR FAHEY BANK COMPANY APPROVING A COMBINED 
PRELIMINARY AND FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR FAHEY BANK ON 
APPROXIMATELY 0.81 ACRES ON PROPERTY ZONED B-3 (COMMUNITY 
BUSINESS DISTRICT) AND LOCATED AT 75 WEST WILLIAM STREET.   
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached report 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1129.05 Final Development Plan   
requirements of the zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 7-0 on December 5, 2018. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 



 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval as submitted with the documented conditions. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-118 
 
AN ORDINANCE FOR FAHEY BANK COMPANY 
APPROVING A COMBINED PRELIMINARY AND FINAL 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR FAHEY BANK ON 
APPROXIMATELY 0.81 ACRES ON PROPERTY ZONED 
B-3 (COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT) AND LOCATED 
AT 75 WEST WILLIAM STREET. 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on December 5, 2018 
recommended approval of a Combined Preliminary and Final Development Plan for 
Fahey Bank Company for Fahey Bank on approximately 0.81 acres on property 
zoned B-3 (Community Business District) and located at 75 West William Street 
(PC Case 2018-2923). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Combined Preliminary and Final Development Plan 
for Fahey Bank Company for Fahey Bank on approximately 0.81 acres on property 
zoned B-3 (Community Business District) and located at 75 West William Street, is 
hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted with the following conditions that: 
 

1. The applicant needs to obtain engineering approvals, including any storm 
water and utility issues that need to be worked out through the Engineering 
and Utilities Departments.  All comments regarding the layout and details of 
the project are preliminary and subject to modification or change based on 
the final technical review by the Engineering Department once a complete 
plan set is submitted for review. 

2. The limestone on the building shall be Delaware blue vein limestone or 
equivalent as approved by City Staff.  

3. All building appurtenances (coping, downspouts, etc.) shall be painted to 
match the adjacent building color. 

4. The Applicant shall submit all building elevations along with material and 
color samples for all building materials for staff review and approval.  

5. All mechanical equipment shall be screened from public view. 
6. The lighting plan shall be reviewed and approved by the Chief Building 

Official and all lighting shall meet the requirements of the approved 
development text and the Planning & Zoning Code. 

7. Any directional and drive thru canopy signage shall achieve compliance 
with the zoning code and be reviewed and approved  
 
 



SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



FACT SHEET

AGENDA ITEM NO:  22  

ORDINANCE NO: 18-119 

READING: FIRST  

DATE:  12/10/2018 

RESOLUTION NO: 

PUBLIC HEARING:  YES 

January 14, 2019 at 7:20 p.m. 

TO: Mayor and Members of City Council  

FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 

VIA: David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 

TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR FAHEY BANK COMPANY APPROVING A CONDITIONAL 
USE PERMIT FOR FAHEY BANK ON APPROXIMATELY 0.81 ACRES ON 
PROPERTY ZONED B-3 (COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT) AND LOCATED 
AT 75 WEST WILLIAM STREET.  

BACKGROUND: 
See attached report 

REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1150 Flood Plain Regulations of the zoning 
code. 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 7-0 on December 5, 2018. 

FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 

POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 

PRESENTER(S): 



David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval as submitted with the documented conditions. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-119 
 
AN ORDINANCE FOR FAHEY BANK COMPANY 
APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR FAHEY 
BANK ON APPROXIMATELY 0.81 ACRES ON PROPERTY 
ZONED B-3 (COMMUNITY BUSINESS DISTRICT) AND 
LOCATED AT 75 WEST WILLIAM STREET. 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on December 5, 2018 
recommended approval of a Conditional Use Permit for Fahey Bank Company for 
Fahey Bank on approximately 0.81 acres on property zoned B-3 (Community 
Business District) and located at 75 West William Street (PC Case 2018-2924) and  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Conditional Use Permit for Fahey Bank Company for 
Fahey Bank on approximately 0.81 acres on property zoned B-3 (Community 
Business District) and located at 75 West William Street, is hereby confirmed, 
approved, and accepted with the following condition that: 
 

1. The applicant shall not add additional fill within the 100 year flood plain per 
Chapter 1150 Flood Plain Standards. 
 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 





























































































FACT SHEET

AGENDA ITEM NO:  23  

ORDINANCE NO: 18-120 

READING: FIRST  

DATE:  12/10/2018 

RESOLUTION NO: 

PUBLIC HEARING: YES 

January 14, 2019 at 7:30 p.m. 

TO: Mayor and Members of City Council  

FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 

VIA: David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 

TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION: 
AN ORDINANCE FOR NUTTER COMPANY LLC., APPROVING A CONDITIONAL 
USE PERMIT FOR BLUE SKY CAR WASH ON APPROXIMATELY 1.28 ACRES 
ON PROPERTY ZONED A-1 PMU (AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT WITH A 
PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) AND LOCATED ON LOT 2 OF 
THE COUGHLIN’S CROSSING DEVELOPMENT.  

BACKGROUND: 
See attached report 

REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1148 Conditional Use Regulations of the 
zoning code. 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 7-0 on December 5, 2018. 

FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 

POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 



PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval as submitted with the documented conditions. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-120 
 
AN ORDINANCE FOR NUTTER COMPANY LLC., 
APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR BLUE 
SKY CAR WASH ON APPROXIMATELY 1.28 ACRES ON 
PROPERTY ZONED A-1 PMU (AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT 
WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) 
AND LOCATED ON LOT 2 OF THE COUGHLIN’S 
CROSSING DEVELOPMENT. 
 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on December 5, 2018 
recommended approval of a Conditional Use Permit for Nutter Company LLC., for 
Blue Sky Car Wash on approximately 1.28 acres on property zoned A-1 PMU 
(Agricultural District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) and located on 
Lot 2 of the Coughlin’s Crossing Development (PC Case 2018-2936). 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Conditional Use Permit for Nutter Company LLC., for 
Blue Sky Car Wash on approximately 1.28 acres on property zoned A-1 PMU 
(Agricultural District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) and located on 
Lot 2 of the Coughlin’s Crossing Development, is hereby confirmed, approved, and 
accepted with the following condition that: 
 

1. No other car washes shall be permitted within the Coughlin’s Crossing 
development (all Sub-Areas). 
 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  24    DATE:  12/10/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-121   RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE FOR NUTTER COMPANY LLC., APPROVING A COMBINED 
PRELIMINARY AND FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR BLUE SKY CAR WASH 
ON APPROXIMATELY 1.28 ACRES ON PROPERTY ZONED A-1 PMU 
(AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY 
DISTRICT) AND LOCATED ON LOT 2 OF THE COUGHLIN’S CROSSING 
DEVELOPMENT.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached report 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1129.05 Final Development Plan   
requirements of the zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 7-0 on December 5, 2018. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 



PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval as submitted with the documented conditions. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 18-121 
 
AN ORDINANCE FOR NUTTER COMPANY LLC., 
APPROVING A COMBINED PRELIMINARY AND FINAL 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR BLUE SKY CAR WASH ON 
APPROXIMATELY 1.28 ACRES ON PROPERTY ZONED 
A-1 PMU (AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED 
MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) AND LOCATED ON 
LOT 2 OF THE COUGHLIN’S CROSSING 
DEVELOPMENT. 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting on December 5, 2018 
recommended approval of a Combined Preliminary and Final Development Plan for 
Nutter Company LLC., for Blue Sky Car Wash on approximately 1.28 acres on 
property zoned A-1 PMU (Agricultural District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay 
District) and located on Lot 2 of the Coughlin’s Crossing Development (PC Case 
2018-2937). 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Combined Preliminary and Final Development Plan 
for Nutter Company LLC., for Blue Sky Car Wash on approximately 1.28 acres on 
property zoned A-1 PMU (Agricultural District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay 
District) and located on Lot 2 of the Coughlin’s Crossing Development, is hereby 
confirmed, approved, and accepted with the following condition that: 
 

1. The applicant needs to obtain engineering approvals, including any storm 
water and utility issues that need to be worked out through the Engineering 
and Utilities Departments.  All comments regarding the layout and details of 
the project are preliminary and subject to modification or change based on 
the final technical review by the Engineering Department once a complete 
plan set is submitted for review. 

2. The developer shall execute an agreement for the subject lot and the lot to 
the north to share the proposed curb cut. 

3. The applicant shall show on their plans and record a cross access 
agreement adjacent to the north/south drive aisle to the out parcel to the 
north and south for internal access. Should the property to the north and 
south develop the owner of the out parcel to the north and south shall be 
required to utilize and perform any required improvements to complete 
access to the subject out parcel.    

4. The limestone on the building shall achieve compliance with the approved 
development text.  



5. All building appurtenances (coping, downspouts, etc.) shall be painted to 
match the adjacent building color. 

6. All roof top mechanical equipment shall be screened from public view. 
7. The applicant shall submit all building elevations along with material and 

color samples for all building materials for staff review and approval.  
8. The dumpster enclosure shall be constructed of stone to match the building 

and have wood doors painted or stained to match. 
9. Per the approved development text, stone piers shall be placed at regular 

intervals, street trees planted and a low 2-3 feet high undulating earthen 
mound along with front yard trees shall be installed along US 23 on the 
subject property. 

10. Shrubs a minimum 3 feet high at planting shall be installed along the 
northern property line adjacent to the parking lot and access drive. 

11. The lighting plan shall be reviewed and approved by the Chief Building 
Official and all lighting must meet the requirements of the approved 
development text and the Planning & Zoning Code. 

12. The building signage size, material and color shall be submitted and 
reviewed by staff for approval. 

13. A tree replacement payment in lieu of planting of trees of $5,786.88 shall 
be paid prior to approval of construction drawings. 
 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



















































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  25    DATE:  12/10/2018 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 18-122   RESOLUTION NO:   
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Jackie Walker, Assistant City Manager 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING THE SALARY AND BENEFITS OF THE 
COUNCIL CLERK, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
When the Clerk of Council position was moved from part-time to full-time, it 
was placed in the Management Pay Plan.  Now that the duties and 
responsibilities of the position are clearer, City Council requested staff to 
conduct a position audit to help it determine the appropriate compensation 
level for the position.   
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED:  
In making the adjustment to a position appointed by City Council, it makes 
sense to set the Clerk’s salary in the same manner as Council’s other 
appointee, the City Manager.  As such, this ordinance would set the Clerk of 
Council’s salary for 2019.  A corresponding change will remove the position 
from the Management Pay Plan. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S):  
The adjustment will impact the 2019 General Fund based on increased wages 
and other costs/benefits that are associated with wages. 



 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S):  
Mayor Carolyn Kay Riggle 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Typically, legislation enacting pay changes go to three readings. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S)  
None 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 18-122 
  

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING THE SALARY AND 
BENEFITS OF THE COUNCIL CLERK, AND 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

  
WHEREAS, the City Council Clerk (“Clerk”) is one of two positions 

appointed by City Council and is not subject to civil service laws; and 
 

WHEREAS, among other duties included in the job description, the Clerk 
is responsible for managing the Council packet and agenda process; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Clerk leads the city’s sister city initiative; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Clerk serves as City Council’s representative on the Main 

Street Delaware board; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Clerk bears responsibility for managing and maintaining 

the records of the legislative body as well as all Boards and Commissions of the 
City of Delaware; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Clerk’s duties require coverage of meetings occurring in 

the evening as well as daytime hours; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Clerk uses independent judgment and discretion in 

fulfilling the duties of the position and setting her schedule; and 
 
WHEREAS, based on an assessment of the duties of the Clerk conducted 

by city staff in 2018, the salary of the clerk should fall within the M2-M6 
classifications on the management pay plan.  

  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
  

SECTION 1. The Council Clerk shall be paid a salary of $24.04 per hour 
effective December 26, 2018 which coincides with the new calendar year and 
the effective date of the management pay plan for 2019.  

  
SECTION 2.  The Council Clerk shall be entitled to the benefits offered to 

exempt employees in the current City of Delaware Summary of Benefits. 
 
SECTION 3.   Emergency Clause:  This Ordinance is declared to be an 

emergency measure necessary for the immediate preservation of the public 
peace, property, health, safety and welfare of the City. The emergency clause is 
required to enact the changes effective on December 26, 2018 which coincides 
with the new calendar year and the effective date of the management pay plan 



for 2019. Therefore this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately 
upon its passage. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
VOTE ON EMERGENCY CLAUSE: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 

 
PASSED: _________________________, 2018 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 
 

 



City Manager Report 20181210 

 
 
 
 
TO:  Mayor Riggle and Members of Council 
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Miscellaneous Matters 
 
DATE: December 6, 2018 
 
 
1. Calendar 
 See Attached 
 
2. Per Section 73 Of The City Charter The City Manager Is To Report 

Contract Agreements 
 N/A 
 
3. Bi-Weekly Meetings 
  
 November 20 
 * ICMA site visit to National Veteran’s Memorial 
 November 26 
 * Rotary 
 * City Council Meeting 
 November 27 
 * Sustainovation Workshop 
 November 28 
 * Berkshire JEDD Board Meeting 
 November 29 
 * Turning Point Event 
 November 30 
 * Tree Lighting Event 
 December 2 
 * Holiday Parade 
 December 3 
 * Rotary 
 * Budget Work Session  
 December 4 
 * 911 Board Meeting 
 * YMCA/ONG/City Meeting 
  
  



December 
 

 

2018 
Meeting Schedule Council, Boards, Commissions, & Committees 

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 
      1 

      Budget Work Session 9 
am – noon-CANCELED 

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 
 Budget Work Session 

6:30 p.m. 
 Planning Commission 

7pm 
Budget Work Session 
6:30 p.m. if necessary- 
CANCELED 

  

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 
 City Council Meeting 

7pm 
 BZA 7pm-CANCELED    

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 
 Parking and Safety 

Committee 6pm- 
CANCELED 

 HPC 7pm  Year End City Council 
Meeting 7 pm 

  

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 
  City Offices Closed 

 
    

3030 31      
       

 


	01 20181210 council agenda
	CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS

	02 20181126 council minutes
	03 20181203 budget work session minutes
	04 20180926 hpc minutes
	04 20181023 shade tree minutes
	05 planning minutes
	06 fact sheet ord 18-114,  fee schedule
	07 ord  18-114 , fee schedule update
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____

	08 fact sheet ord 18-109, budget 2019
	09 ord 18-109, budget 2019 Appropriation
	10 fact sheet res 18- 65, NCA guidelines
	11 res 18-65 ,  NCA GUIDELINE
	12 fact sheet ORD 18-90 approving Terra Alta NCA (2)
	13 Ord 18- 90, Approving Creation of NCA
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-90

	14 Petition (Revised_Signed) as filed with City 12.6.18
	15 TERRA ALTA OLD draft
	16 Fact Sheet ord 18-105 , 2018-1968 Belle Commons PSP
	17 ord 18-105 , 2018-1968 Belle Commons PSP
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-105

	18 Fact Sheet ord 18-106 , 2018-1969 Belle Commons FSP
	19 ord 18-106 , 2018-1969 Belle Commons FSP
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-106

	20 2018-1968 makapa belle commons staff report
	21 fact sheet ord 18-110 , municipal court employees benefits
	22 ord 18-110 , amend municipal court employee benefits 2019
	23 fact sheet ord 18-111 , 2019 amend ppt pay
	24 ord 18-111, 2019 PPT and Seasonal
	25 fact sheet ord 18-112, management pay plan
	26 ord 18-112 , mgt pay plan 2019
	27 2019 Management Pay Plan DRAFT
	PAY GRADE                  POSITION
	1.  Maximum Vacation Accrual
	2. Initial Compensatory Time
	3. Clothing Maintenance Allowance
	4. Uniforms Allowance

	A. Vacation
	Days/Hours of Leave
	SECTION III - INSURANCE
	Department Heads = $50,000

	SECTION IV
	OTHER COMPENSATION
	SECTION V
	MISCELLANEOUS

	28 Fact Sheet ord 18-113 Council Salaries 2020
	29 ord 18-113 , council salary pay plan
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____

	30 2018-2933 Heatherton Phase 8 FDP Fact Sheet
	31 18-115, 2018-2933 Heatherton Phase 8 FDP
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-115
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	32 fact sheet ord 18- 115, 2018-2934 Heatherton Phase 8 FSP
	33 ord 18- 116, 2018-2934 Heatherton Phase 8 FSP
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-116
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	34 heatherton staff report
	35 fact sheet ord 18-117, 2018-2916 Delaware County Fairgrounds CPFDP  (3)
	36 ord 18-117, 2018-2916 Delaware County Fairgrounds CPFDP  (1)
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-117
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	37  Delaware County Fairgrounds staff report
	38 fact sheet ord 18-118, 2018-2923 Fahey Bank CPFDP
	39 ord 18- 118, 2018-2923 Fahey Bank CPFDP
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-118
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	40 fact sheet ord 18- 119, 2018-2924 Fahey Band CUP
	41 ord 18-119, 2018-2924 Fahey Bank CUP
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-119
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	42 Fahey Bank Staff Report
	43 fact sheet ord 18-120, 2018-2936 Blue Sky Car Wash CUP
	44 ord 18-120, 2018-2936 Ble Sky Car Wash CUP
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-120
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	45 fact sheet ord 18-121, 2018-2937 Blue Sky Car Wash CPFDP
	46 ord 18-121, 2018-2937 Blue Sky Car Wash CPFDP
	ORDINANCE NO. 18-121
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	47 blue Sky staff report
	48 Fact Sheet  ord 18-122, pay plan for Clerk of Council
	49 ord 18-22, council clerk compensation
	50 city managers report 20181126
	51 Dec Calendar 2018



